
 
 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAYOR & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
AGENDA 

 
Monday, January 11, 2021 

7:00 P.M. 

 

Attendance and Public Comment Procedures: Due to the current state of emergency, 
consistent with the Governor’s Disaster Proclamation issued on November 13, 2020, and in 
accordance with 5 ILCS 120/7(e), the physical presence of a quorum of the corporate authorities 
being excused, participation by Village Board members at this meeting will be carried out 
remotely via the ZOOM meeting platform. The Mayor will be present in the Board Room to 
preside over the meeting, as required by law, along with select staff. Trustees’ attendance shall 
occur via the Zoom meeting platform by accessing the meeting link. All Trustees must participate 
in the meeting with a video-enabled webcam. Trustees using a webcam without a microphone 
may call into the meeting at (312) 626-6799, using Meeting ID 872 4474 1683; Password 
588051. 
Pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-71 physical attendance at this meeting 
shall be limited to 10 people. Therefore, attendance by members of the public for the January 
11, 2021 Village of Burr Ridge Board of Trustees meeting will be permitted both in person 
(subject to social distancing and capacity limitations) and virtually. Members of the public may 
attend the meeting by accessing the meeting link, using either a computer microphone or by 
calling into the meeting at (312) 626-6799, using Meeting ID 872 4474 1683; Password 588051. 
Public comments will also be taken prior to the meeting via email at BRMeetings@burr-
ridge.gov. E-mailed public comments shall identify whether the comment is intended to address 
a specific agenda item (please identify the agenda item) or is intended for general public 
comment under Section 9 of this Agenda. Public comments may also be made during the 
meeting at the applicable time. All public participants will be muted upon entering the virtual 
meeting. Prior to voting on each agenda item, public participants will be unmuted and asked for 
comments. The same procedure will be followed for any person seeking to address the Board 
under Section 9 - Public Comment. Each speaker addressing the Board of Trustees is asked to 
limit comments to five minutes. 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA – OMNIBUS VOTE 
 
All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the Village Board and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Board member or citizen so request, in which event the item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda, discussed by the Board, opened for public comment, and voted upon 
during this meeting. 
 

5. MINUTES 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87244741683?pwd=aHd2bnp2V3VRdy8xL2tlaG1tVVN2Zz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87244741683?pwd=aHd2bnp2V3VRdy8xL2tlaG1tVVN2Zz09
mailto:BRMeetings@burr-ridge.gov
mailto:BRMeetings@burr-ridge.gov


A. *  Approval of Regular Board Meeting of December 14, 2020   
 

B. *  Receive and File Street Policy Committee Meeting of December 14, 2020   
 

C. *  Receive and File Water Committee Meeting of December 16, 2020 
 

D. *  Receive and File Plan Commission Meeting of December 21, 2020   
 

6. ORDINANCES 
 
A. Consideration of an Ordinance Granting Special Use Approvals Pursuant to the 

Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance for a Restaurant with Sales of Alcoholic Beverages, 
Live Entertainment and Outdoor Dining (Z-15-2020: 212 Burr Ridge Parkway - 
Halleran)   
 

B. Consideration of an Ordinance Granting a Variation from the Burr Ridge Zoning 
Ordinance to Permit a Restaurant in County Line Square Without the Required 
Number of Parking Spaces (Z-15-2020: 212 Burr Ridge Parkway - Halleran)  
  

C. *  Approval of Ordinance Granting a Special Use for a Medical Office (Z-12-2020: 
7512 County Line Road – Giadla)   

 
7. RESOLUTIONS 

 
A. Consideration of a Resolution Appointing Acting Finance Director For the Village 

of Burr Ridge 
 

B. *  Adoption of Resolution for Maintenance Under the Illinois Highway Code 
Appropriating Motor Fuel Tax Funds for the 2021 Road Program  

 
8. CONSIDERATIONS 

 
A. Consideration of Street Policy Committee Recommendation to Approve the 2021 

Road Program  
 

B. Consideration of Special Use for a Preschool at 7508 County Line Road (Z-14-
2020: Kammala) 

 
C. *  Receive and File Letter of Resignation of Utililty Worker I George Macha from 

the Burr Ridge Public Works Department 
 

D. *  Approval of Recommendation to Hire Replacement General Utility Worker I to 
Fill Vacancy Created by the Resignation of George Macha 
 

E. *  Receive and File Letter of Resignation of Utililty Worker I Andre Timmons from 
the Burr Ridge Public Works Department 
 

F. *  Approval of Recommendation to Hire Replacement General Utility Worker I to 
Fill Vacancy Created by the Resignation of Andre Timmons 

 
G. *  Receive and File Letter of Resignation of Officer Patrick Patla from the Burr 

Ridge Police Department 



 
H. *  Approval of Recommendation to Hire Replacement Patrol Officer to Fill Vacancy 

Created by the Resignation of Patrick Patla 
 

I. * Approval of Vendor List Dated January 11, 2021, in the Amount of $247,553.36 
for all Funds, plus $187,331.28 for Payroll for the Period Ending December 12, 
2020 for a Grand Total of $434,884.64, Which Includes Special Expenditures of 
$47,040.67 to Compass Minerals America for Three Deliveries of Bulk Rock Salt; 
and $24,622.24 to Unique Plumbing Company for Sewer System Improvements 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

10. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



- 1 - January 7, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Board of Trustees 

FROM: Village Administrator Evan Walter and Staff 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Regular Meeting of January 11, 2021

January 7, 2021 

6. ORDINANCES

A. Special Use for Restaurant with Entertainment and Sales of Alcohol

B. Variation for Restaurant Without Required Parking

Attached are Ordinances granting special use approvals and a parking
variation for a restaurant to be located at 212 Burr Ridge Parkway in County
Line Square. At its December 7, 2020 meeting, the Plan Commission
recommended approval of these requests while the Board directed staff to
prepare the Ordinances at its December 14, 2020 meeting.

The special use ordinance includes approval for a restaurant with sales of
alcoholic beverages, live entertainment, and outdoor dining. The parking
variation allows the restaurant without the shopping center having sufficient
parking for the restaurant. The Ordinance granting the parking variation
includes conditions requiring valet parking for the restaurant with valet parked
vehicles being located west of the main entryway to the shopping center.

It is staff’s recommendation: That the Ordinances be approved.

C. Special Use for Medical Office in the T-1 District

Attached is an Ordinance granting special use approval for a medical office in
an existing office building. At its November 16, 2020 meeting, the Plan
Commission recommended approval of this request, and at its December 14,
2020 meeting, the Village Board directed staff to prepare the Ordinance.
Conditions of the special use include requirements for improvements to the
rear transitional yard including drainage, landscaping, and fencing that match
the improvements on the adjacent property occupied by Shirley Ryan Ability
Lab.

It is staff’s recommendation: That the ordinance be approved.

7. RESOLUTIONS

A. Appoint Acting Finance Director

Due to the extended absence of the Village’s Finance Director, Assistant



 - 2 - January 7, 2021 

Finance Director Amy Nelson has been performing the duties of Finance 
Director. The Finance Director is a position created by the Burr Ridge 
Municipal Code, exercising supervision over the staff of the Finance 
Department as well as management of various accounting and financial 
control functions on behalf of the Village. Ms. Nelson should be appointed to 
the position of Acting Finance Director to ensure proper supervision of the 
aforementioned functions of this Department. Ms. Nelson would receive an 
approximate 20% increase in annualized compensation during her service in 
this position, if approved.  
 
It is staff’s recommendation: That the Board approve a resolution to 
appoint Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson as Acting Finance Director at 
an annualized salary of $110,000.  
 

B. Motor Fuel Tax Funds for 2021 Road Program 
 
To apply incoming Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) funds from the State towards the 
Village’s 2021 Road Program, it is necessary to adopt the attached “Resolution 
for Maintenance Under the Illinois Highway Code”. This resolution 
appropriates the entire allotment of MFT funds for the Village from the State to 
the 2021 Road Program, which is estimated to be $370,500 for FY21-22.  
 
It is staff’s recommendation: That the resolution be adopted. 
 

8. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A. Approval of 2021 Road Program 
 
The Engineering Division in the Public Works Department annually develops 
the Village’s Road Program by using assessments from its biennial street 
condition rating survey and targeting specific roadways with the proper 
treatment at the proper time.  Road Programs schedule the resurfacing of local 
roads, as well as preventative pavement maintenance (crack sealing) and 
traffic markings.  The Road Program is budgeted annually in the Capital 
Improvement Fund and for FY 2020-21, relied on revenues of the Motor Fuel 
Tax (MFT) and transfers from the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund. 
 
Road Program contracts in FY2020-21, for their advantageous bulk prices and 
contractor availability, also completed work on water main repair patching 
(Water Fund) and various sidewalk repairs (Sidewalk/Pathway Fund). The 
sum total amount completed for Road Program work and Sidewalk/Pathway 
Fund maintenance is $654,567, which is $100,543 under budget. 
 
In FY2021-22, the proposed Road Program is estimated in the amount of 
$978,200. Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) revenue is forecasted approximately in the 
amount of $370,500. Therefore, a total local obligation of $607,700 would be 
anticipated to fund this work. The Street Policy Committee reviewed and 
recommended the 2021 Road Program at its regular meeting on Monday, 



 - 3 - January 7, 2021 

December 14, 2020, thereby directing staff to prepare bid documents and 
funding resolutions to advance the proposed program for a March 2021 bid 
opening. 
 
As staff works through the upcoming FY 2021-22 budget, the Board may adjust 
the Road Program and Capital Improvements Fund depending on availability 
of surpluses or other transfers to the General Fund. 
 
At the Village Board meeting on January 11, 2021, the Director of Public Works 
will present summaries of the completed 2020 Road Program and proposed 
2021 Road Program. Several documents are attached which show the scope 
of the proposed 2021 Road Program as well as a five-year projection of future 
needs. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation: That the Village Board approve the Street 
Policy Committee recommendation for the 2021 Road Program. 
 

B. Special Use for Preschool at 7508 County Line Road 
 
Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending 
approval of a request by Guidepost A, LLC for a special use for a building 
addition; a special use for a “Day Care Center”; and a variation to permit a 
reduction of the required 8 foot side yard landscaping area. The Plan 
Commission held public hearings for this petition on November 16, 2020, 
December 7, 2020, and December 21, 2020. The petitioner seeks approval to 
use the property at 7508 County Line Road for a Montessori School. The 
property is currently developed and occupied as a funeral home. Planned 
improvements include a 2,626 square foot building addition to the existing 
4,512 square foot building, an outdoor play area, and reconfigured parking, 
access and landscaping.  
 
The petitioner originally filed this request with a larger addition and several 
other variations including a request to exceed the maximum permitted floor 
area ratio. After two meetings with the Plan Commission, the petitioner 
reduced the size of the building addition, added perimeter landscaping in the 
front, sides, and rear yards, and was able to eliminate all but one variation 
(which seeks to reduce the depth of the side landscaping yards). 
   
The Plan Commission was concerned about the land use and in particular, the 
outdoor play area. The petitioner was able to address this concern with a solid 
fence enclosure for the outdoor play area and solid perimeter landscaping on 
both sides of the property. The petitioner also agreed to enhance the rear yard 
by creating a drainage swale and adding fencing and landscaping. The 
petitioner also volunteered to remove the front yard turnaround, add a public 
sidewalk and provide for underground stormwater storage. The conditions for 
approval of the special use and variation are included in the attached letter. 
 
In regards to the variation, the Plan Commission determined that the property 



 - 4 - January 7, 2021 

was unique in that it was smaller than the required minimum lot size, and it 
was developed before there was any required side yard landscaping. The 
Commission determined that these conditions created a hardship relative to 
full compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Three neighbors spoke at the public hearings. The neighbors expressed 
concerns about stormwater management, rear yard landscaping, and parking.  
Their comments are included in the minutes from these meetings. 
   
It is staff’s recommendation: That the Board direct staff to prepare 
ordinances granting a special use and variation for the subject petition.  

   
C. Resignation of General Utility Worker 1 George Macha 

 
D. Hire Replacement General Utility Worker 1 

 
Please find attached a letter from General Utility Worker 1 George Macha 
tendering his resignation from the Public Works Department effective January 
5, 2021. After an evaluation of the position, Interim Village Administrator Evan 
Walter recommends that the now-vacant GU1 position referenced in agenda 
item 8C be filled with immediate effect. This position is located in the 
Operations Division and serves to primarily maintain Village buildings and 
grounds as well as maintain the Village’s street infrastructure and assist in 
snow and ice management. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation: That the letter of resignation be received 
and filed and the Board approve filling the vacant position.   
 

E. Resignation of General Utility Worker 1 Andre Timmons  
 

F. Hire Replacement General Utility Worker 1 
 
Please find attached a letter from General Utility Worker 1 Andre Timmons 
tendering his resignation from the Public Works Department effective 
December 23, 2020. After an evaluation of the position, Interim Village 
Administrator Evan Walter recommends that the now-vacant GU1 position 
referenced in agenda item 8E be filled with immediate effect. This position is 
located in the Water/Wastewater Division and serves to primarily support the 
maintenance of the Village’s underground utility system as well as assist in 
snow and ice management.  
 
It is staff’s recommendation: That the letter of resignation be received 
and filed and the Board approve filling the vacant position. 
 

G. Resignation of Police Officer Patrick Patla 
 
H. Hire Replacement Police Officer 

 



- 5 - January 7, 2021 

Please find attached a letter from Police Officer Patrick Patla tendering his 
resignation from the Police Department effective December 26, 2020. Interim 
Village Administrator Evan Walter recommends that the now-vacant Police 
Officer position referenced in agenda item 8G be filled with immediate effect.  

It is staff’s recommendation: That the letter of resignation be received 
and filed and the Board approve filling the vacant position. 

I. Vendor List of January 11, 2021

Attached is the vendor list dated January 11, 2021, in the amount of
$247,553.36 for all funds, plus $187,331.28 for payroll period ending
December 12, 2020, for a grand total of $434,884.64, which includes special
expenditures of $47,040.67 to Compass Minerals America for three deliveries
of bulk rock salt; and $24,622.24 to Unique Plumbing Company for sewer
system improvements.

It is staff’s recommendation:  That the January 11, 2021, vendor list be
approved. 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS



11591 

REGULAR MEETING 
MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

December 14, 2020 

CALL TO ORDER The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of December 14, 
2020, was held in the Meeting Room of the Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois 
and called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Mayor Gary Grasso.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   Mayor Grasso led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL   Roll call was taken by the Acting Village Clerk and the results denoted the following 
present: Trustees Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza, Snyder, and Mital via Zoom. Present in the Board 
Room were Mayor Grasso and Trustee Mottl.  

In addition, present in the Board Room were Interim Village Administrator Evan Walter, Police Chief 
John Madden, Deputy Police Chief Marc Loftus, Public Works Director David Preissig, Assistant 
Finance Director Amy Nelson and Village Attorney Mike Durkin. 

Mayor Grasso read the following declaration. 

“I hereby declare as Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge that I have determined that an in person 
meeting is not practical nor prudent on account of the disaster declaration issued by Governor Pritzker 
because of the COVID-19 pandemic.” 

PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearing – 2020 Tax Levy 
Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson presented the 2020 Tax Levy. The Village is required to hold 
a public hearing if the projected Tax Levy is over 5% of the 2019 tax levy under the Truth and 
Taxation Law. The proposed request at the November 9th board meeting for the 2020 Tax Levy is 
$1,341,760, a 6.31% increase or $79,661 over 2019. Burr Ridge is subject to the Property Tax 
Extension Limitation Law (tax cap) which dictates any increase by limiting it to a cost-of-living 
adjustment plus the capture of new growth resulting from annexation or new construction. The cost-
of-living increase is based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) which is set at 2.3% this year. 

The Village of Burr Ridge is a non-home-rule community and is subject to the State-imposed tax levy 
cap of 5% over the previous year’s tax levy or the cost of living increase; whichever is lower, plus 
new growth.  Ms. Nelson continued that there is an unknown factor, which is the new growth, and 
the Village historically estimates a growth factor of 4%, adding the CPI 2.3% for the final increased 
value of 6.3%.   

5A



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11592 
 

The Tax Levy Ordinance must be adopted and filed with both counties (Cook and DuPage) no later 
than the last Tuesday in December. To comply with this deadline, the village must estimate the 
increase for new growth, which has historically been approximately 4%. The Village has historically 
estimated a slightly higher amount to capture all of the property tax revenue under the tax cap, and 
not lose any income. 
 
The Tax Levy is divided into three separate levies: Police Pension, Corporate, and Police Protection. 
The amount for the Police Pension Levy is determined by the Village’s independent actuary and is 
the State of Illinois statutory minimum requirement. The remainder of the Levy is divided between 
the Corporate Levy (60%) and the Police Protection Levy (40%). The Police Pension Levy increased 
approximately 20% this year, resulting in a reduction of about $71,000 for General Fund revenues for 
this year. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked staff to provide scenarios for a 4.50% and 4.99% (net dollar) property tax 
increase for reference, in addition to what was presented at the November 9 meeting. Ms. Nelson 
reviewed the other scenarios: with a 4.50% increase, the proposed levy would be $1,318,886, with a 
4.99%; the increase would be $1,325,084. A 4.5% increase would result in a $95,000 general fund 
reduction and the 4.99% increase would result in a general fund reduction of $88,388. Ms. Nelson 
asked for Board direction and offered to answer any questions.  
 
Ms. Nelson added that the Village has established statutory authority to request up to $1,341,760. 
Approval of the Tax Levy Ordinance at any value would continue the trend of the Village in 
representing less than 2% of the local property tax bill. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked for public comments. There were none. He asked the Village Clerk if there were 
any written comments received, there were none. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Schiappa, seconded by Trustee Snyder that the Public Hearing be closed. 
 
The Motion was approved by unanimous vote by the Board of Trustees and the Public Hearing was 
adjourned at 7:20 pm. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – OMNIBUS VOTE 
After reading the Consent Agenda by Mayor Grasso, motion was made by Trustee Snyder and 
seconded by Trustee Mital that the Consent Agenda – Omnibus Vote (attached as Exhibit A, except 
7C, 8C, 8D, 8F) and the recommendations indicated for each respective item be hereby approved. 
Any item removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed by the Board, opened for public 
comment, and voted upon during this meeting. 
 
After reading the Consent Agenda by Mayor Grasso, the following motions were made to remove the 
following agenda items from the Consent Agenda: 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11593 
 

 
Remove 7C (Motion by Trustee Mottl) 
Remove 8C (Motion by Trustee Franzese)  
Remove 8D (Unintelligible) 
Remove 8F (Motion by Trustee Mottl) 

 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  6 - Trustees Snyder, Mital, Mottl, Franzese Schiappa, Paveza  
NAYS : 0 - None 
ABSENT: 0 - None  
There being six affirmative votes the motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 23, 2020 were 
approved for publication, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote. 
 
RECEIVE AND FILE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MEETING OF DECEMBER 2, 2020 
were noted as received and filed under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote. 
 
RECEIVE AND FILE PLAN COMMISSION MEETING OF DECEMBER 7, 2020 were noted 
as received and filed under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote.  
 
APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DESTRUCTION OF PERSONAL 
PROPERTY OWNED BY THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE the Board, under the Consent 
Agenda by Omnibus Vote, Approved the Ordinance. 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE 
ELECTORS OF THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, AT THE CONSOLIDATED ELECTION 
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 6, 2021, A PUBLIC QUESTION AS TO WHETHER TO 
INCREASE THE ANNUAL COMPENSATION FOR THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT/MAYOR 
the Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, Approved the Resolution. 
 
APPROVAL OF 2021 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE the Board, under the 
Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved the schedule. 
 
APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR ALL PURPOSES FOR ALL 
CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, DUPAGE AND COOK 
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING ON MAY 1, 2020 AND 
ENDING APRIL 30, 2021  
 
Evan Walter, Interim Village Administrator explained that this is an extension period of the property 
taxes for the year in which the Board takes action for an ordinance to levy taxes for the 2020 fiscal 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11594 
 

year in arrears (2020-2021 fiscal year). Mayor Grasso explained the projected 6.31% increase is over 
the historical percentage non-home rule village levied. As such, Mayor Grasso asked staff to prepare 
scenarios at 4.5% and 4.99%, recommending we remain under 5%, the non-home rule cap. Trustee 
Paveza asked if requested amount (6.31%) would increase the Burr Ridge Village tax rate. Amy 
Nelson explained that the county factors into the 6.31% the lesser of the CPI rate of 2.3% or 5% cap, 
so we are guaranteed the 2.3% and any additional new growth. The last three years, Burr Ridge has 
seen an average of 1.5% in new growth, with a levy around 4% (averaging about 3% over the last ten 
years). Mayor Grasso confirmed with Ms. Nelson that if the amount that we put into this proposal at 
6.31%, driven largely by the Police Pension, with a CPI of 2.31%, it is unlikely we will get 4%. Ms. 
Nelson confirmed that was correct. Mayor Grasso asked the Board to consider the other two options 
presented (4.5% and 4.9%) in the discussions. Trustee Paveza recommended that we request more 
and consider the higher 4.9% option. Trustee Schiappa asked for some historical numbers on previous 
growth, which Ms. Nelson reported. In 2019, we estimated 5.9%, we actually saw 3.3%, in 2018 it 
was 3.19%, 2017 it was 3.1%, and in 2016 it was 1.36%, so we have not seen over 5% for any previous 
tax levy since 2008. Based on the historical numbers, Trustee Schiappa agreed with Trustee Paveza 
recommendation to go with 4.9%. Trustee Mital asked what the downside would be to ask for the 
6.31%. Mayor Grasso responded that asking for a percentage that has never been granted, and to be 
consistent with the 5% non-home rule village cap, that we consider the staying under 5%. Mayor 
Grasso clarified that at the 6.31% we are asking for approximately $80,000 increase, at 4.5% it is 
$57,000, and at 4.99% it is $63,000. We are likely to get something in the 3% range, which is about 
$50,000. Trustee Franzese clarified that anticipated growth in the village is new property 
development, tax rate classification changes, and property improvements, that all result in higher tax 
bill assessments. That anticipated growth does not affect resident fees. Ms. Nelson confirmed that 
resident tax fees would not increase due to these factors. Trustee Mottl thanked Mayor Grasso for 
presenting the options and commented that when residents elected to be a non-home rule village it 
was a reminder that they want to keep their taxes low. He also mentioned the importance of 
government maintaining restraints in spending and that he would support conserving village expenses 
and a cost of living or zero levy request.  Mayor Grasso disagreed, stating that the village strives to 
save money whenever it is prudent to do so, and keeps the village’s best interest in mind when 
governing and budgeting, which is evident in the considerable surplus the village has. He also 
mentioned that no matter how well one governs locally, that there are unfunded mandates, such as the 
police pension obligation, that impact finances. This year there was a significant increase from last 
year. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked what the delta between last year and this year alone as to what our obligations 
are. Ms. Nelson said the village is on a fiscal year that ends in April 30, and that the market returns 
at that time were terrible. The state also made significant changes to the tier-two pension benefits that 
affected Village obligations.  
 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 

11595 

Interim Village Administrator Walter outlined the financial impact of the pension obligation, which 
went up from $758,000 last year to $910,000 this year, up 20%. He also reviewed the alternative tax 
levy options that were discussed earlier. 

Mayor Grasso added that non-home rule villages such as Burr Ridge have a limited ability to ask for 
funds Next year the pension obligation will likely be over $1 million, and we may have to go into 
reserves – keeping in mind that we will probably receive something in the 3% range. 

Trustee Mottl brought up the Village’s hiring practices that may be responsible in some part for the 
state protection and pension numbers but that we may want to look into new ways of looking into the 
police hiring in terms of more officers on a part-time basis, hiring fewer police officers, or reducing 
salaries. Mayor Grasso agreed, noting that a review is done on an annual basis and that this was not 
the time to review that topic. He also mentioned that union contracts must be adhered to and that there 
are some expenses out of our control. Mayor Grasso stressed that public safety is a number one 
priority for the village, and that Burr Ridge is consistently being highly rated with an AAA bond 
rating. He said we should always be looking at ways to improve services and streamline costs, but 
that this was not the time do so, but to focus on the tax levy.  

Motion was made by Trustee Schiappa and seconded by Trustee Mital to approve a tax levy of 4.5%. 

Mayor Grasso asked if there was any further discussion by the Board.  There was none. 

Village Attorney Mike Durkin pointed out that the tax levy ordinance in the packet would then be 
amended in various sections to reflect the 4.5% tax levy and the amount changed to $1,318,886. 

Mayor Grasso asked if there was any public comment.  There was none. 

On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 - Trustees Schiappa, Mital, Franzese, Paveza, Snyder 
NAYS : 1 - Mottl 
ABSENT:  0 - None 
There being five affirmative votes, the motion carried. 

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION CENSURING TRUSTEE ZACHARY MOTTL 
FOR THE SIXTH TIME 
Motion was made by Trustee Snyder and seconded by Trustee Schiappa. 

Mayor Grasso asked if there was any discussion. 

It was requested that the Mayor read the resolution. Mayor Grasso read the resolution, which included 
a request for Trustee Mottl to resign based on his past actions.  



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11596 
 

 
Mayor Grasso asked for any public comment.  There was none. 
 
The Mayor asked for any further discussion. Trustee Mottl said that the negative comments he made 
should have stayed in his head, he apologized and added that he meant it as a dry humor joke not 
related to any specific resident. As for the censures in general and other items mentioned, he said he 
felt the Mayor had also made comments that could be interpreted as being inappropriate and asked 
that the Board stop censuring him and asking for his resignation. Trustee Mottl said that this is the 
definition of insanity and that he will not resign and he would continue to bring items up. He said he 
would not make an inappropriate comment again as he had in the past and apologized for any offense 
to any resident. He did not agree with the items in the resolution and felt that they were distractions. 
Trustee Mottl said he has tried to get some items on the agenda unsuccessfully, such as apparent 
liquor violations by licensees in the village, referring to Mayor Grasso’s son’s valet business. Point 
of Order was called and Trustee Mottl was asked to remain on topic by one of the Trustees. Mayor 
Grasso confirmed that Trustee Mottl was off point and that he could bring up specific topics or 
concerns at a future meeting. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 - Trustees Snyder, Mital, Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza 
NAYS : 1 - Mottl  
ABSENT:  0 - None 
There being five affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER FOR THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
Trustee Mottl said he is opposed to hiring Judge Filan, and that he feels that it is a conflict of interest 
for Mayor Grasso as he is an attorney. Trustee Mottl did not feel that this is a good program for the 
village, not in the best interest of the residents and that it takes away resident rights and freedoms. He 
felt that one does not need to have a preponderance of evidence to be found guilty, and he felt it could 
give the Mayor an opportunity to reward friends and supporters as it creates an opportunity for 
impropriety and corruption. Trustee Mottl added he did not feel it would save money or time for the 
police. Mayor Grasso responded that his comments were unsubstantiated.  
 
Motion was made by Trustee Franzese and seconded by Trustee Schiappa. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked for any further comments. 
 
Trustee Paveza stated that the reason to do this was that tickets and minor infractions could be handled 
locally by a judge here in Burr Ridge. Mayor Grasso stated that the reason this was brought up for 
Burr Ridge by the Village Administrator and Police Chief was that since part of the village is in 
DuPage County, ordinance violations and traffic court had historically been held in Downers Grove.  



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11597 
 

For several years, security issues had been noted at that facility and it has been shut down.  Residents 
and the police officer will now have to travel to Wheaton for court appearances. Mayor Grasso stated 
that several surrounding communities had already successfully implemented this program with 
success. Judge Filan, the Hearing Officer chosen, was vetted and has no affiliation with the village. 
Ms. Filan has 20 years’ experience in private practice. She was elected and re-elected twice as a Cook 
County judge and is now retired. She also serves as a Hearing Officer for at least five other 
communities and is well qualified. Mayor Grasso said the program was a good one. Trustee Paveza 
agreed that the program was worthwhile and did not agree with the negative implications mentioned 
by Trustee Mottl. Trustee Snyder said that it was too bad that Trustee Mottl continually felt that the 
village went against him and if Trustee Mottl would attend all the meetings, he wouldn’t have missed 
the discussions and details leading up to these decisions. Trustee Schiappa said that the program and 
candidate would both be beneficial to the village and motioned for this resolution. Trustee Franzese 
mentioned the time savings for the residents and that the Judge was very well qualified and respected, 
and would act as an independent contractor. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked for public comment. Christine Formanski asked if there was any data relating to 
the percentage of residents who pay for their tickets and don’t go to court compared to those who go 
to court. Chief Madden said he did not have data readily available but would get it. She said that she 
would prefer to go to Wheaton to traffic court. Mayor Grasso said that if a resident disagreed with the 
outcome at Burr Ridge, that they had the right to contest the decision. Ms. Formanski said that in her 
opinion most people pay for their speeding tickets. Mayor Grasso said that the convenience for 
residents and the travel time saved by the police were benefits for the program. He added that the 
police would be present at the Village Hall hearings.   
 
Ellen Raymond, resident, asked about the hiring process and how the job was posted. She said she 
did not feel she was more qualified than a judge but wanted to know more about the process. Deputy 
Chief Loftus said he reached out to surrounding towns and received several recommendations. They 
secured more detail on the fees and experience of each candidate who was recommended to them by 
other communities, and selected the most qualified candidate. With four very qualified candidates 
they did not post the job as this was also a new program and there was no existing hiring protocol. 
Trustee Mottl asked if the final candidate was asked for the same information as the other three 
candidates and why all four candidates were not solicited at the same time. Deputy Chief Marc Loftus 
said that the final candidate was solicited after they had received information on the other three. They 
were made aware of a judge in Burr Ridge who was an excellent candidate, so she was asked for the 
same information as the other three candidates. Mrs. Raymond asked if there was any previous 
procedure set forth on hiring.   Mayor Grasso said he was not aware of any. Mayor Grasso also 
clarified that residents who wanted to contest results of a Village Hall hearing could, and the case 
would be reviewed to see if it should be retried in Wheaton.  
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 - Trustees Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza, Snyder, Mital 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11598 
 

NAYS : 1 - Mottl  
ABSENT:  0 - None 
There being five affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE A 
SPECIAL USE AS PER SECTION VIII.B.ff OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR A 
RESTAURANT WITH LIVE ENTERTAINMENT AND SALES OF ALCOHOLIC 
BVERAGES; A SPECIAL USE TO PERMIT AN OUTDOOR DINING AREA AT A 
RESTAURANT; AND A VARIATION FROM SECTION XI.C.13 OF THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE TO PERMIT A RESTAURANT WITHOUT A REQUIRED NUMBER OF 
PARKING SPACES AT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL IN THE B-1 BUSINESS 
DISTRICT (Z-15-2020;212 BURR RIDGE PARKWAY – HALLERAN) 
 
Village Planner Doug Pollock said that the Plan Commission held public hearings at their November 
16 and December 7 meetings where this request was discussed and considered appropriate. The 
Commission requested Board approval for special use for a restaurant coming into the County Line 
Square Shopping Center, for live entertainment, sales of alcoholic beverages, and outdoor dining. The 
only concern the Commission had was related to parking. The shopping center landlord had added 36 
additional parking spaces to the property in 2016 but the shopping center is still somewhat short on 
parking. The restaurant is anticipated to have higher parking needs than the Fred Astaire Dance studio 
(the previous tenant), which had 14 parking spaces. The restaurant would require 49 parking spaces. 
The Plan Commission asked the restaurant owner for a parking management plan, which he presented 
at the December meeting. The proposed parking included providing valet parking services with cars 
being parked on the western half of the shopping center, which is largely unused in the evening. The 
Plan Commission unanimously approved the parking plan. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked for any questions or comments, also asking for public comments. Trustee 
Schiappa asked what the current number of parking spaces at the shopping center was. Mr. Pollock 
said that there are 468 parking spaces, which includes the additional 36 created in 2016. Trustee 
Franzese asked of those 468 spots, were the Chase Bank parking spaces included. Mr. Pollock 
confirmed that they were not. Trustee Franzese also asked about the number of handicapped spaces, 
and Mr. Pollock did not have that number handy, but confirmed that the parking lot has the appropriate 
number of handicapped parking spaces. There was no public comment. 
 
Staff was directed to prepare ordinances approving the special use request and the parking variation 
as recommended by the Plan Commission.  
 
Mayor Grasso asked for any other comment. Trustee Franzese expressed confidence that the parking 
would work, and said he wanted to be sure that the noise would be properly managed to avoid resident 
complaints. Trustee Mottl said he had some concerns about the noise complaints, and asked who the 
valet company would be. The valet company was not known. Trustee Franzese noted that there were 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 

11599 

only four complaints about noise since the village was forced to have only outside dining. He said he 
was confident that there would be no issues with this new vendor. Trustee Schiappa said that he visits 
the County Line Square often and parking does not seem to be problem. He also commended the 
restaurant owner for opening a restaurant at this time in the village. Trustee Mital said that while she 
had noticed that there was some parking congestion during the day when all businesses were busy, 
she was confident with a restaurant coming in that the parking would not be a problem.  

Motion to approve by Trustee Snyder, seconded by Trustee Mital. 

On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 - Trustees Snyder, Mital, Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza 
NAYS : 1 - Mottl 
ABSENT:  0 - None 
There being five affirmative votes, the motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF HOA SURVEILLANCE CAMERA SOFTWARE UPGRADE 

Trustee Franzese asked Chief John Madden to clarify if the existing HOA cameras are active or 
passive, as most HOA cameras are implemented as being passive and only used in the event of a 
crime investigation.  Chief Madden clarified that the HOA cameras are passive and gave an overview. 
HOA cameras are now located in 16 subdivisions in Burr Ridge and there are currently 82 HOA 
cameras in Burr Ridge, all passive. The data, which is only video, is fed into servers in the Village 
Hall. Two police cars are equipped with cameras on their cars that can read license plate data and 
compare it to the “hot” files for stolen cars or crime activity. Over the past few months, Chief Madden 
was introduced to new technology that he feels would be beneficial to the Village. It would integrate 
data from existing cameras and query data in real time for stolen cars, license plates or car owners 
related to criminal activity.  The technology also allows for the reading of paper vehicle stickers and 
can be programmed for specific details if needed like a car rack or car color should a specific car need 
to be tracked. Photos are tracked, no video, and the information is encrypted, and then deleted after 
30 days. If there was any potential threat, the information can be also shared with other communities. 
The Village of Burr Ridge would own the data and it would remain secure. Currently, the 82 current 
cameras are high quality that can capture license plate images and can be accessed by police officers 
when needed. Every subdivision is different in terms of how long the photos are saved. 

Chief Madden gave an example of how the updated technology would have assisted in recovering a 
stolen vehicle. The vehicle in question was in one of our subdivisions for three minutes before leaving. 
Had the new technology been in use, the officers would have been notified of the stolen vehicle upon 
its entering the subdivision, responded to the location in less than two minutes and stopped the vehicle 
before it left the area. There is also a cost savings for the technology if purchased before the end of 
the year. Of the existing 82 HOA subdivision cameras, 42 would become LPR-enabled with the 
“Wing” program from Flock Safety. It is not a budgeted item but Chief Madden felt it would be a 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 

11600 

benefit to the Village and a significant tool for the police department. The regular price for this 
technology is $89 per camera per month; law enforcement municipalities are currently being offered 
a special price of $39 per camera if they agree to buy the software by December 31, 2020. Chief 
Madden recommended integrating this technology for the 42 cameras (those in the locations that 
would be most beneficial) at the special price of $19,656, plus a $1,000 registration fee ($20,656 total 
annual fee), which would be valid for two years (an annual savings of $25,200). For the third year, 
the price would then go up to the $89 per camera ($44,856). Chief Madden also secured quotes for 
new cameras and integrating this technology with other vendors that would be at a much higher cost 
for the same result. 

Chief Madden said he would reach out to each of the subdivisions to discuss this new technology 
before the end of the year if this was approved. He also said he would like to have cameras for the 
interchanges at I-55 down the line that would have allowed for quicker identification of a car 
connected with a recent village crime.  

Deputy Chief Loftus confirmed that the images would be owned by the Village and that the images 
are only accessed when connected with criminal activity. Data cannot be sold by Flock and can only 
be accessed with approval and at the request of the Village. There is a 30-day data storage time limit 
per our contract. 

Mayor Grasso asked for questions. Trustee Schiappa asked about the 82 HOA cameras and asked for 
confirmation that the plan would be to fit 42 cameras with the new technology and why not all of 
them. Chief Madden said that not all cameras needed integration, as not all were needed based on 
location. He also confirmed that at this time, the cost of this technology would be absorbed by the 
village. Trustee Paveza asked about the costs and Chief Madden confirmed that the cost would be on 
an annual basis and that in the third year, the fee would go up. Interim Village Administrator Walter 
confirmed that there would be no significant impact to the budget or IT Fund, which is budgeted to 
accommodate improving technology for the village. Chief Madden also confirmed that the 
subdivisions would still bear the cost of the cameras -- the village is just paying for the integration 
technology for the camera.  

Trustee Mottl expressed concerns about the privacy and civil liberties of residents and asked if the 
December 31 deadline and special pricing could be extended so that there would be more time to 
discuss it with the subdivisions. He also asked if the village would save any money elsewhere in the 
budget with this technology or if there could be a reduction in the number of police officers. Chief 
Madden clarified that this technology would be a force multiplier and would drastically increase 
response time for improved capability. There was no plan to reduce the number of police officers at 
this time. Trustee Mottl then asked about how one gets on the “bad license plate” list as he did not 
want to get on the list. Chief Madden explained that when a resident reports their car stolen or criminal 
activity is reported, the license plate gets added. Chief Madden said that the information is only added 
when a crime is suspected; the information is entered in by the Burr Ridge Police Department.  



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11601 
 

 
Resident Richard Morton gave an example of an incident that recently happened where the video 
camera systems were very beneficial. Mr. Morton felt that the camera technology was somewhere 
between active and passive. He added that the nature of the system is evolving for the Flock software. 
He also felt that all HOAs/subdivisions should have the option to participate. Mr. Morton asked about 
the data and if it could be downloaded after 30 days in case the information was needed.  He also said 
that this new technology will not deter the criminal element, and that the Village should still consider 
more cameras to capture more images in isolated areas. 
 
Motion for approval was made by Trustee Franzese, seconded by Trustee Snyder. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked if there was any further discussion.  
 
Trustee Mottl asked for an extension for another month for discussions with the subdivisions. Chief 
Madden said he would be talking to each HOA and that they would have the option not to participate 
if they did not want to. Chief Madden added that no subdivision would be forced into the program.  
 
Trustee Franzese stated that this would be a great benefit, so it might be worth discussing with new 
subdivisions down the line. Mayor Grasso agreed that the more subdivisions that have the cameras, 
the more police coverage would be available for the Village. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  6 - Trustees Franzese, Snyder, Mital, Mottl, Schiappa, Paveza  
NAYS : 0 - None 
ABSENT:  0 - None 
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE A SPECIAL 
USE FOR A MEDICAL OFFICE IN THE T-1 TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT (Z-12-2020: 7512 
COUNTY LINE ROAD – GIADLA) 
 
Interim Village Administrator Walter stated that the direction from the Planning Commission was to 
make sure that there was orderly planning about noise, light, landscaping of the proposal to make sure 
this complies with resident concerns. Approval for the parking plan, should diagrams presented be 
agreed upon, will be put in writing for the next board meeting. 
 
Peter Giadla, business owner, expressed his concerns on several issues and it was agreed upon that 
once the ordinance was drafted, he would be able to review it prior to the formal vote in January. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mottl, seconded by Trustee Mital. 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11602 
 

 
Mayor Grasso asked if there was any public comment.   There was none. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  6 - Trustees Mottl, Mital, Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza, Snyder 
NAYS : 0 - None  
ABSENT:  0 - None   
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF VENDOR LIST DATED DECEMBER 14, 2020, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$551,447.50 FOR ALL FUNDS, PLUS $445,029.99 FOR TWO PAYROLL PERIODS ENDING 
NOVEMBER 14, 2020 AND NOVEMBER 28, 2020, FOR A GRAND TOTAL OF $996,477.49 
WHICH INCLUDES SPECIAL EXPENDITURES OF $36,569.02 TO SCHROEDFER 
ASPHALT SERVICES FOR SIDEWALK AND PATHWAY MAINTENANCE; AND 
$43,583.46 TO RJN GROUP, INC. FOR THE MWRD PROGRAM 
 
Trustee Mottl said he was looking at some of the dollar amounts and asked about the $45,631 fee for 
documents for legal fees and asked for clarity for the cost of those over the last few months. The other 
question he had pertained to the payroll for the Administration Department for $93,969.75. He added 
that the administration payroll would typically be about $40,000 if this included two payroll cycles, 
and questioned whether it was the added expense for Doug’s termination or vacation payout. 
  
Mayor Grasso asked Mr. Walter to address these questions but mentioned that if these questions had 
been asked earlier, but also that detailed explanations could have been provided and questions 
answered in more specificity had the question been brought up prior to the meeting. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked for any additional comments and asked that Trustee Mottl be provided the detail 
requested above prior to the next meeting. 
 
Motion to approve by Trustee Snyder, seconded by Trustee Mital.   
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 - Trustees Snyder, Mital, Franzese, Schiappa, Paveza, 
NAYS : 1 - Mottl  
ABSENT:  0 - None 
 
There being five affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED DISCUSSION OF BUSINESS INCENTIVE PROGRAMS 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 
 

11603 
 

Mayor Grasso made a recommendation that since it was 9:20 pm and this item was not time sensitive, 
that it be tabled and placed on the next Board Meeting agenda. 
 
Motion to table was made by Trustee Mottl, seconded by Trustee Schiappa. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  6 - Trustees Mottl, Schiappa, Franzese, Paveza, Snyder, Mital,  
NAYS : 0 - None. 
ABSENT:  0 - None 
 
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Grasso asked for public comments.  
 
Patricia Davis, resident, said that she has a master’s degree in public health, and reported that in the 
past week the positivity rate in region 8 (Burr Ridge is in that region) for COVID was 13.5%, up from 
12.9% on a rolling average. In Cook County, the rate was up from 13.1% up on a seven day rolling 
average from 12.3%. She referenced a presentation at the Board Meeting on October 26 regarding 
restaurant dining tents. She said that Evan Walter, then Assistant Village Administrator, reported on 
phase four of the Governor’s COVID mitigation/efforts and asked for clarification – and if it meant 
that that outdoor dining would still be allowed but that inside dining would not allowed per the state 
ordinance. Trustee Franzese asked for a distinction between outdoor dining in a tent with walls down 
for winter and inside dining. Mr. Walter clarified that a tent with all four walls down is considered 
indoor dining. To be considered outdoor dining, that would require at least two walls being open or 
windows open.  Mr. Walter stated that in winter, the tents would be considered inside dining if the 
walls were down and heaters were on. Ms. Davis said that none of the restaurants in Burr Ridge have 
open tents or having windows that are open, yet call this outside dining.  She referenced a photo that 
she took two weeks ago at Capri, which has a tent with no windows and all four sides of the tents 
down. It was completely enclosed and was not “outdoor dining”. With the positivity rates climbing, 
she asked how these restaurants remain open and how the village justifies keeping them open and 
stressed monitoring capacity. Ms. Davis asked that the safety of the residents be made a priority and 
that the recommended guidelines be better monitored for restaurants. 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 
 
Trustee Mital stated that Jingle Mingle has been canceled this year and postponed to 2021. 
 
Trustee Mottl said he had some items that he wanted to bring up. He commented that some restaurants 
were not complying with the law for COVID restrictions, and said that he will be interested to see the 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 

11604 

tax bill receipts for restaurants that have expanded space with outside dining. He also asked that the 
closed session minutes of Board Meetings from September 14 and 28 be released. He said that he was 
troubled by what he had heard and asked the Board to release the closed session minutes or portions 
thereof and asked that this be placed on the next meeting’s agenda. He also implied that there might 
be illegal activity going on. The other items he brought up were an apparent violation of the liquor 
control act by a one licensee that may have been resolved. Trustee Mottl also wanted to discuss if 
Michael Grasso’s valet business in Burr Ridge represents any conflict of interest for Mayor Grasso. 
Trustee Mottl speculated that an additional payment to Mr. Pollock and the reasons for that payment 
and if there is more money that is being paid out than the public is aware of. He then mentioned the 
status of Finance Director Jerry Stapp and his return to work plan and the costs involved. Trustee 
Mottl went on to request for a review of undocumented legal fees, and stated that he felt there might 
be a conflict of interest as Trustee Snyder had a relationship with the legal firm used, implying a “best 
friend” relationship. He concluded by asking why he cannot participate in the Board Meetings via 
phone only and was asked by one Trustee to supply documentation for his phone. 

Trustee Paveza stated that the Board can and has allowed some minutes from closed session meetings 
public when it makes sense to do so. Trustee Mital mentioned that Trustee Mottl had inappropriately 
disclosed to the public confidential closed session minutes from a meeting he did not attend. 

Trustee Franzese addressed Trustee Mottl’s request for financial back up and detail, stating that 
finances are summarized for the meetings and that staff would be happy to provide details with 
advance notice and time prior to a meeting. It was also mentioned that Trustee Mottl had missed ten 
meetings since September 2018. Trustee Mottl then asked Trustee Paveza if he was drinking alcohol 
on the call, and that it would be inappropriate if he were. Trustee Paveza said he was drinking water. 

Mayor Grasso recognized and commended the Finance and Administration Departments; they had 
applied for the Government Finance Officers Association award for distinguished budget presentation 
and won. He congratulated Jerry Sapp, Amy Nelson, Amy Sullivan, and all staff who participated. 
The award recognized a budget that presents itself as a policy document, financial plan, operational 
guide and communication device. The budget met all of those parameters and had won the award. 

He also welcomed Susan Schaus as the newly appointed Acting Village Clerk to her first village 
Board Meeting and thanked her for filling in when Karen Thomas retired. 

Mayor Grasso announced that Village Hall would be closed thru January 4 to promote the health and 
safety of staff and residents. Staff is working remotely and is available by phone and email to conduct 
business. Deliveries and permit documents can be left in the vestibule of the Village Hall and permit 
and utility payments can be left in the drop box on the outside of the building by the main entrance. 
Accommodations have been made for candidates filing for office. He mentioned that the Village Hall 
would be fully closed on December 24 and 25, the afternoon of December 31, and on January 1. 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
December 14, 2020 

11605 

Mayor Grasso mentioned all the positive comments received about the beautiful holiday lights in the 
village and in closing he wished everyone a happy holiday season. Mayor Grasso asked that everyone 
enjoy time with family whether it be together or via Zoom this year, He asked everyone to take care 
of their health and those around them, and to look forward to 2021 with more promise.  

CLOSED SESSION 

Motion was made by Trustee Schiappa, seconded by Trustee Mital that the regular meeting be 
adjourned and that the Board go into closed session to discuss the appointment, employment, 
compensation, or performance of specific employees of the public body. 

On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  6 -Trustees Schiappa, Mital, Mottl, Franzese, Paveza, Snyder 
NAYS : 0 - None 
ABSENT:  0 - None 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote for the Board of Trustees and the meeting was 
adjourned at 9:44 pm. 

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary or discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects 
that no discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item. 

___________________________________________________ 
Susan Schaus 
Acting Village Clerk 
Burr Ridge, Illinois 

APPROVED BY the Mayor and Board of Trustees this ______ day of ____________, 2020. 



MINUTES 
STREET POLICY COMMITTEE 

Burr Ridge Village Hall Board Room 
7660 S. County Line Road, Burr Ridge 

Monday, December 14, 2020 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Grasso called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 
Present in the Board Room: Mayor Grasso 
Present via Zoom: Trustee Al Paveza, Trustee Guy Franzese, Trustee Tony Schiappa 
Also Present: Interim Village Administrator Evan Walter, Public Works Director/Village Engineer 
David Preissig, and Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson 

APPROVAL OF JANUARY 13, 2020 MINUTES 
Trustee Paveza made a motion to approve the minutes of January 13, 2020. The motion was 
seconded by Trustee Franzese and approved by a vote of 3-0; Trustee Schiappa was considered 
absent while still connecting via Zoom. 

YEAR-END SUMMARY OF 2020 CAPITAL PROGRAM 
Public Works Director David Preissig indicated that the 2020 Road and Improvement Program 
was completed in the amount of $654,567, which was $100,543 less than budget. The program 
included resurfacing on Devon Ridge Drive, Devon Ridge Court, Circle Ridge Drive, Circle Ridge 
Court, 81st Street, Ridgepoint Drive, Lake Ridge Drive, Lake Ridge Court, and Erin Lane. He 
stated that parking lot seal coating was identified this year for the parking lots at Village Hall, 
Police Station, and Public Works, but these contracts were waitlisted. 
Due to advantageous pricing, Mr. Preissig noted that sidewalk and pathway repair was completed 
as well. Though it is from a separate fund, the pricing incorporated the project at 8750 County Line 
Road. He thanked the Partipilo family for allowing the Village to use some of their property for 
the project, which kept it under budget. Other work included pavement patching, crack sealing, 
and pavement marking throughout different streets in the Village. 
Trustee Franzese thanked Mr. Preissig and Staff and extended a special thank you to the Partipilo 
family. Mayor Grasso mentioned how beautiful the Partipilo family property looks. Trustee Paveza 
agreed with Mayor Grasso. 

DISCUSSION OF 2021 MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND REVENUE FORECAST 
Public Works Director Preissig explained that the Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) had increased from 19 
cents to 38 cents per gallon in July 2019. Mr. Preissig called attention to the detailed report by 
Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson in the agenda packet for the analysis of MFT revenue. It 
was noted that the COVID-19 pandemic caused a decrease in both vehicle-miles-traveled and 
consumption of gasoline, which subsequently lowered the forecasted revenue from MFT. 

5B



Minutes – Street Policy Committee 
Meeting of December 14, 2020 
Page 2 

 

 
PRESENTATION OF 2021 ROAD PROGRAM RECOMMENDATION 
Public Works Director Preissig discussed the status of the Village’s system-wide Pavement 
Condition Rating (PCR) on all of the streets as a benchmark for comparison. Overall, the PCR for 
Village streets is 85.2 out of 100, where 100 would be considered a perfect road. Around 75 PCR, 
the residents begin to notice and call Village Hall. Also, around 15 to 20 years, between 
resurfacings, residents start to call. Several of the collector roads have been resurfaced recently, so 
they are in good condition with a higher PCR that contributes more to the overall PCR. 
Additionally, with an aggressive crack-sealing program over the past five years, approximately 
58% of the streets are crack sealed, and these streets overall have a PCR of 88. 
Director Preissig expressed a growing concern for the Village streets. From 1999-2004 the Road 
Program spent approximately a million dollars each year to resurface more than 5 miles of Village 
roads each year. Asphalt prices, the major component of the resurfacing contracts, ranged $35- 
44/ton. Recently, the Road Program has averaged fewer than two miles per year, while asphalt 
prices now average approximately $68/ton. The roads that were resurfaced in 1999-2004 are at or 
exceeding the 20-year expected life. Director Preissig explained that maintaining the current 85.2 
PCR would require an increase in capital improvement funds. 
Based on the 2019 Street Rating Survey, the following list of streets were recommended for the 
2021 Road Program at approximately $978,200: 

 Dartmouth Ct 
 Lakewood Subdivision 

o Heather Dr & Ct 
o Lakewood Cir 
o Wedgewood D 

 Braemoor (Part of Units 1 & 2) 
o Bennacott Ln 
o Park Ave South Of 83rd Street 

 Braemoor Estates: 
o 81st St at Garfield Ave 
o Garfield Ave South of 79th Street 
o Park Ave North of 83rd St. 
o Kathryn Ct 

 Old Oak Highlands: 
o Hamilton Ave South of 79th Street 
o Highland Ct 
o Old Oak Ct 

 
 Village Hall, Police, and Public Works Parking Lots: Sealcoating and Striping 

 
 Pavement Patching, Crack Sealing, Pavement Marking, Material Testing 

Director Preissig called attention to the State's Rebuild Illinois Bond Fund (RBI) to be used by 
July 1, 2025. This new program allocates a total of $695,880 to the Village, which will be received 
in six (6) installments over the next three (3) years. It is to be treated like MFT; however, the State 
requires that it be used on a substantial improvement in the transportation infrastructure. He 
identified two (2) streets toward which the RBI might be used: S. Frontage Road and 83rd Street. 
Director Preissig noted that nothing needs to be decided during the meeting for the RBI Funds, but 



Minutes – Street Policy Committee 
Meeting of December 14, 2020 
Page 3 

 

 
it is worth mentioning these additional funds. Separated pathway projects are not an eligible use 
of RBI funds. 
Trustee Schiappa added the idea of a bicycle lane for use with the RBI funds. He questioned if we 
can add another transportation mode to the street and potentially receive more money for that 
purpose. Preissig explained that RBI is maxed for the Village already, allocated per capita. 
Trustee Paveza asked about S. Frontage Road and 83rd Street and wondered if we put them in the 
same category as other streets. Preissig answered that RBI has specific requirements for how it can 
be used to resurface streets, based on traffic volume and a designed pavement life. Trustee Paveza 
asked if the State, IML, or anyone else has looked at MFT reduction as people move to electric 
cars. Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson noted there had not been a specific mention of 
electric vehicles in the publications. 
Mayor Grasso questioned if the RBI funds may change when the 2020 Census results come in. 
Ms. Nelson explained that the funds were allocated in summer 2019, and the funds would not be 
reallocated based on the 2020 Census results. She mentioned that we have already received two 
(2) installments, but we cannot touch the funds until the Village identifies a project. 
Trustee Franzese agreed there are some great possibilities for the RBI funds. He suggested coming 
up with a list of potential projects to get started and provide added value to the Village. Mayor 
Grasso asked how soon we should act. Mr. Preissig said we have to identify a project by 2024. 
Trustee Paveza agreed that we should be ready to act. 
Mayor Grasso asked for further explanation on the proposed Capital Improvements Funding 
projects over the next five (5) years. 
Interim Village Administrator Evan Walter explained that during the early 2000s, the Village’s 
accumulation of building permit fees accounted for the excess spending on roads, and the Village 
would not realistically see such revenue again due to the lack of available land for growth, . In 
2010, the Village reduced spending in the depths of a recession and only allocated the MFT 
allotment on the Road Program. Road Program expenditures in subsequent years went up as the 
economy improved, similar to the early 2000s.. Money from permits is approximately $300,000 
per year instead of the $1,000,000 from the early 2000s. As such, the Road Program spending 
decreased comparatively. Mr. Walter noted that the capital improvement fund will need to find a 
substantial amount of additional money to maintain its current 85 PCR throughout the Village. 
Additionally, Mr. Walter stated that MFT funds do not have to be allocated to the Road Program. 
They can be used for other related expenses such as paying certain staff, purchasing salt, and other 
projects. The reallocation of MFT funds would allow the Village to open up the bidding to more 
contractors that cannot bid on MFT projects. 
Mr. Walter noted some challenges moving forward on how the Village can maintain an 85 PCR. 
Traditionally, good roads assume a high priority in the Village's funding structure. As such, Staff 
has taken this approach to make sure there are funding options available, so this can stay a priority. 
Mr. Walter asked the Committee if the 85 PCR represented sustainable service level for the Village 
to maintain. He noted he did not need the answer this year but that the Committee and Village 
begin to consider the question. 
Trustee Franzese agreed that it is a good question and that all Trustees should provide input with 
information from staff, and other experts. 



Minutes – Street Policy Committee 
Meeting of December 14, 2020 
Page 4 

 

 
Mayor Grasso asked when they need to start making these decisions. Mr. Walter noted that there 
would not be a major challenge to fund the 2021 Road Program, but that the Village should have 
the question answered in time for the 2022 Road Program. As such, sometime after the fiscal year 
closes, a long-term discussion should begin about the philosophy and impact of staying with an 85 
PCR. 
Mayor Grasso noted there should be a special meeting in summer 2021 to discuss the Road 
Program’s priorities. He stated that the Road Program is important to him and many of the other 
Trustees. He would like to know more about the road quality and the funds expended if the Village 
maintains a PCR at 85, or adjusts to an alternate service level, whether that be greater or lesser. 
Trustee Schiappa expressed his appreciation for the Road Programs. For the summer meeting, he 
agreed there is a need to look at the different scenarios Mayor Grasso mentioned. Trustee Schiappa 
suggested also 80, 75, or 70 PCR projections and how does that impact spending by the Village in 
10 to 15 years. 
Trustee Franzese noted that a summer meeting would allow the committee to see progress on the 
2021 Road Program and evaluate any savings. He supports a summer meeting. Trustee Paveza 
concurred. 
A motion to recommend approval of the 2021 Road Program as submitted by staff was made by 
Trustee Al Paveza. Trustee Guy Franzese seconded the motion. 
Before votes, Trustee Franzese asked that all documentation be presented to the Village Board, 
including the map with the proposed projects from the PowerPoint presentation, the PCR chart 
that shows all of the roads in the Village with the ratings, and when the PCR chart will be updated. 
He suggested giving the Board more information so the Committee can explain the spending 
increases proposed over the next five (5) years. 
The motion was approved by a vote of 4-0. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
There was no public comment. There being no further business, a motion was made by Trustee 
Schiappa to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Trustee Paveza and approved by 
a vote of 4-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:10 p.m. 

Respectively submitted, 

David Preissig, P.E. 
Public Works Director/Village Engineer 



MINUTES 
WATER COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, December 16, 2020 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Trustee Al Paveza at 7:08 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Trustees Al Paveza, Guy Franzese and Joe Snyder 

Absent:   None  

Also Present: Village Administrator Evan Walter, Public Works Director David Preissig, 
Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson, and Accounting Specialist Preeti Goel 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 24, 2020 AND MARCH 9, 2020 MEETINGS 

A motion was made by Trustee Snyder to approve the minutes of the February 24, 2020 and 
March 9, 2020 meetings. The motion was seconded by Trustee Paveza and approved by a 
vote of 3-0.  

UPDATE REGARDING FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 WATER FUND 

Assistant Finance Director Nelson provided a brief update of the Water Fund’s financial 
performance to date in FY 20-21. Ms. Nelson said that due to high consumption in summer 
2020, the Fund was on target to slightly exceed projected revenues for FY 20-21.  Ms. Nelson 
said that one item of note to consider going forward is the structure of the Village’s three-
tiered system, wherein water prices increase if a residential user exceeds 70,000 gallons for 
a given period and again if a user exceeds 90,000 gallons. Accounting Specialist Goel 
confirmed that not all communities use a tiered structure in any capacity, while other 
communities employ tiers but have decreasing prices if additional water is used. Trustee 
Snyder asked for the number of residential accounts that generally fell into each of the three 
tiers to allow for greater context of the Village’s user base. Ms. Nelson suggested that further 
education related to water rates and increases be explored in the future. The Committee 
concurred with this suggestion. 

UPDATE REGARDING WATER RATE MODEL STUDY 

Public Works Director Preissig provided a general timeframe for the water consultant to 
provide new information to the Committee, with the next meeting of the Water Committee 
to include a preliminary analysis of the Village’s water rate structure as well as present a 
hydraulic modeling of the distribution system. Mr. Preissig noted that the development of a 
10-year water line replacement capital plan would be forthcoming in summer 2021. Final
recommendations would be made to the Village Board in Q1 2022. Mr. Preissig concluded by
providing a status update for several larger projects that were ongoing or planned for the
near future.

5C



Minutes – Water Committee 
Meeting of December 16, 2020 
Page 2 
 
CONSIDERATION OF CUSTOMER SERVICE DELIVERY UPGRADES 

Ms. Goel made a presentation regarding “Water Smart”, a software-as-a-service (SAAS) 
customer engagement and analytics platform that allows users to track their own water 
usage, receive relevant notifications, and enhance customer experience.  

The Village’s bi-monthly water billing cycle for the months of July/August 2020 covered one 
of the hottest and driest summers on record. The finance staff answered numerous phone 
calls from the residents about their high water bills and where necessary, scheduled work 
orders to re-read the meters and provide utmost customer service. During the same time, 
staff became aware of Water Smart. Water Smart is a customer engagement and self-service 
platform for water utilities. Data driven digital communications allows residents access to 
their own water usage in the manner and time of their choosing. This provides prompt 
solutions to some of the most common issues residents call about and increases customer 
satisfaction.  

The Water Smart portal would be available to the residents through a mobile and web 
application interface. It provides a single place for the residents to see consumption, check 
and resolve leaks, and receive targeted messages about utility prompted events and 
programs. Water Smart provides alerts to the residents to notify of potential high volume or 
continuous use leaks, to notify the residents that they have reached a self-selected water 
consumption threshold, or to inform residents before the end of the billing cycle that they 
are likely to have high water use on their upcoming bill. Alerts can be sent through multiple 
channels - email, text message, or automated voice call.  

In Illinois, Water Smart has been successfully implemented by Evanston, Glenview, Downers 
Grove, Oak Lawn, Lombard, Elmhurst, Park Ridge, and Franklin Park. The cost for the 
program depends largely on the number of utility accounts and type of services requested. 
For instance, the Village of Downers Grove entered into a three-year agreement in 2020 with 
Water Smart for $139,260 while the City of Elmhurst approved an agreement in 2017 that 
included an initial setup fee of $12,000 with an annual fee of $20,250. Ms. Goel noted that 
other vendors, such as Fathom and Sensus, are present in the market and provide similar 
features to that of Water Smart. 

The Village currently has Sensus Smart Meters that have the capability to provide radio-reads 
through Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) technology. The water meters are read by the staff 
from the Department of Public Works (DPW), approximately every 8 weeks. Meter readings 
are completed by a drive-by radio read instrument, which is placed in a DPW vehicle, and the 
meters are read automatically as a Village employee drives a pre-determined route. Under 
the Village’s current meter technology, neither staff nor residents are able to view real-time 
data on water usage, receive alerts for leaks or high usage, etc.  

To achieve the goal of providing real-time information to the residents regarding their water 
usage, it is essential to invest in a strong Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) network. 
AMI systems provide a number of important functions that are currently not available, such 
as the ability to automatically and remotely measure usage, connect and disconnect service, 
detect irrigation violators, and monitor hourly/daily usage. AMI methodology would allow 
staff to read meters from a remote site without accessing each property. This can be 
performed by a fixed instrument that could be located on the water tower and would 



Minutes – Water Committee 
Meeting of December 16, 2020 
Page 3 
 
automatically read all the meters when prompted to do so and interface the data with the 
utility billing software. The Village is currently not equipped for this scenario and before 
investing in customer portals like Water Smart, it is recommended to build an AMI network. 
Ms. Goel estimated that the cost of setting up AMI technology would be approximately 
$150,000-$200,000.  

Trustee Franzese asked how many residents use the technology in other communities. Ms. 
Goel noted that the first year signup rate in other communities is 12-15% but increase to 
about one-third of the community after some time.  

Trustee Franzese asked for staff’s recommendation for next steps. Mr. Walter said that there 
appeared to be interest from the Water Committee regarding hearing more information 
about Water Smart, and therefore would return with more information at a future meeting 
in Q1 2021.  

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Trustee Snyder to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded 
by Trustee Franzese and approved by a vote of 3-0. The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 p.m.   

Respectively submitted, 

 

Evan Walter 
Village Administrator 

 

EW:jat 



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 21, 2020 

I. ROLL CALL

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by 
Chairman Trzupek.  

Chairman Trzupek read aloud the following statement: 

“As Chairman of the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals, I am 
advising you in your capacity as Deputy Village Clerk that I hereby declare that conducting an in-
person meeting of the Burr Ridge Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals on November 16, 
2020 is neither practical nor prudent due to Governor Pritzker’s May 29, 2020 Declaration of a 
State of Emergency caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.”  

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:  

PRESENT: 8 – Broline, Petrich, Hoch, Irwin, Stratis, Farrell, Parella, and Trzupek 
ABSENT: 0 – None 

(Commissioner Hoch did not respond to Roll Call but later indicated she was present but having 
trouble unmuting her computer) 

Village Planner Doug Pollock was also present. 

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline to 
approve the minutes of the December 07, 2020 Plan Commission meeting.   

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:  

AYES:  7 – Irwin, Broline, Hoch, Petrich, Farrell, Stratis and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public 
hearing on the agenda for the meeting.  

5D



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
December 21, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 
Z-14-2020: 7508 County Line Road (Guidepost); Special Use, Text Amendment, 
Variations, and Findings of Fact 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for a summary of the petition. Mr. Pollock said that the public hearing 
for this petition was continued from November 16 and from December 7 to allow the petitioner to 
revise the plans and petition. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for further comment.  
 
Mr. Zubin Kammula, Attorney for the petitioner, summarized the additional changes.  He said that 
the following changes were made to the plans: additional stormwater storage was proposed as 
recommended by the Village Engineer; a 3 foot side yard buffer was added to the side  lot lines 
except adjacent to the existing building; the front yard turnaround was removed; rear yard 
landscaping, fencing and drainage was added consistent with the two properties to the south; 
details of the play area were added to the plan; and a public sidewalk was also added.  He further 
described a drop off and pick up schedule to show that congestion would not be an issue.  He said 
that they do not anticipate traffic congestion; but if there were to be a problem, they could 
implement the more stringent schedule. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comments. 
 
Carol Novak, 7508 Drew Avenue, asked who removed the children from car seats and if that takes 
more time than was indicated.  Mr. Elan Walsh responded that the staff will take care of removing 
children from the car seats and that the video shown at the last meeting takes that into 
consideration.  She also questioned the number of parking spaces, and Mr. Kummala said that 
there are 18 parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Mark Toma, 7515 Drew Avenue, thanked the petitioner for agreeing to the additional 
stormwater storage.  He said he is concerned that the solid fencing will make the building look 
bigger.  He said he remains concerned that there is not enough parking and that the drive aisles are 
too narrow. 
 
Mr. Walsh responded that they will follow the lead of the Village regarding open or solid fencing.  
He said they have done both in different locations and will do whatever is preferred by the Village. 
 
Ms. Alice Krampits, 7515 Drew Avenue, agreed with Mr. Toma regarding the stormwater.  She 
said she is still concerned about snow removal and storage and noted that the number of parking 
spaces was reduced from the prior site plan.  She stated that the side yard landscaping variation 
was a self imposed hardship due to the size of the building addition. 
 
Mr. Pollock read a letter from the property owner to the south who stated support for the petition 
provided that concerns with landscaping and screening were satisfied.   
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for comments and questions from the Commissioners.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
December 21, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 
Commissioner Stratis asked if there was a minimum percentage of impervious lot area required by 
the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Pollock explained that there was language in the T1 District that 
referenced minimum green space but that he does not think it applies to this development.  
Commissioner Petrich said he had asked about that before, but he is not too concerned because 
they are improving the property and adding more green space. 
 
Commissioner Stratis said that it appears there would not be sufficient parking to return the 
building to use as an office, even after the play area were removed.  He said he is struggling with 
the project and is concerned that he building addition is too much for the property. 
 
Commissioner Farrell said that she prefers the solid fence because it will help with noise 
abatement.  She said that in regards to the side yard landscaping, they are either maintaining or 
improving on current conditions.   
 
Commissioner Petrich said he prefers the solid fence and asked about the second egress from the 
basement.  In response, Mr. Yang stated that the ingress and egress from the basement is code 
compliant.  Mr. Pollock added that the building will have to comply with the building code and 
added that building codes are not within the jurisdiction of the Plan Commission. 
 
Commissioner Broline said that he thinks the traffic circulation will work, that the solid fence is  
preferable, and that he appreciates the changes made to the plans. 
 
Commissioner Parella thanked the petitioner for the changes and agreed that the solid fence is 
preferred.   
 
Commissioner Irwin agreed and said he especially appreciates the added stormwater storage and 
the public sidewalk.  He noted that the property does not currently provide the required side yard 
landscaping and wondered if a variation has previously been approved.  In response, Mr. Pollock 
said that the property was developed before there was a requirement for side yard landscaping and 
therefore is legally non-conforming. 
 
Commissioner Irwin also asked about safety in regards to the narrow driveways and access to the 
rear of  the property.  Mr.  Pollock stated that the proposed driveways comply with the minimum 
zoning standards.  He added that input from the Fire District could be requested, but he speculated 
that the Fire District would be satisfied in that there are two separate points of access, and access 
from adjoining properties is available in an emergency. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked about the reference in the staff report to the lot being undersized. Mr. 
Pollock explained that the minimum lot size in the T1 District is 40,000 square feet in area and 
125 feet in lot width and that the subject property was approximately 25% smaller at 31,000 square 
feet and 100 feet wide.   
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
December 21, 2020 Regular Meeting 

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner if they had reviewed the conditions recommended by staff 
and if they agreed with those conditions.  Mr. Kammula said that they were in agreement with 
those conditions. 
 
Commissioner Hoch added that she believes the revised plans are a big improvement. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion to close the public 
hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
close the public hearing for Z-14-2020. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Stratis, Irwin, Farrell, Broline, Petrich, Hoch, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
recommend that the Board of Trustees approve Z-14-2020 subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. Prior to issuance of a permit for the building addition, the petitioner shall submit final site 
engineering plans and landscaping plans consistent with the submitted preliminary plan 
including but not limited to the following: 
a. A solid row of evergreen bushes shall be planted and maintained within the 3 foot side 

yard buffer area. The bushes shall be a minimum of 4 feet tall at the time of planting. 
b. Rear yard landscaping, drainage and fencing shall be provided as per the attached plan 

and subject to the approval of the Village Engineer. 
c. Dead, dying or diseased plant materials shall be replaced in a reasonable time and as 

needed but in all cases shall be replaced within one year. 
d. Underground stormwater storage shall be provided as per the submitted 

recommendation of the Village Engineer with final plans subject to the approval by the 
Village Engineer. 

e. A public sidewalk shall be constructed in the adjacent right of way subject to the 
approval of the Village Engineer.  

 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Stratis, Irwin, Petrich, Hoch, Broline, Farrell, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
December 21, 2020 Regular Meeting 

IV.  CORRESPONDENCE  
 
There were no comments regarding the Board Report. 
 
V. OTHER PETITIONS 
 
There were no other Petitions on the agenda. 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no further public comments. 
 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Mr. Pollock said that there was no business scheduled for the January 4, 2021 meeting. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Farrell to 
cancel the January 4, 2021 meeting.  The MOTION was unanimously APPROVED by the Plan 
Commission. 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:12 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  8 – Hoch, Petrich, Broline, Irwin, Farrell, Stratis, Parella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 8-0. 
 
Respectfully Submitted:    
 Doug Pollock, Planner  

 



ORDINANCE NO. A-834-___-21 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING SPECIAL USE APPROVALS PURSUANT TO THE 
BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR A RESTAURANT WITH SALES OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, LIVE ENTERTAINMENT AND OUTDOOR DINING 

(Z-15-2020: 212 Burr Ridge Parkway – Halleran) 

 WHEREAS, an application for special use approvals for 

certain real estate has been filed with the Assistant Village 

Administrator of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage 

Counties, Illinois, and said application has been referred to 

the Plan Commission of said Village and has been processed in 

accordance with the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, said Plan Commission of this Village held a public 

hearing on the question of granting said special use approvals 

on November 16, 2020 and December 7, 2020 at the Burr Ridge 

Village Hall, at which time all persons desiring to be heard 

were given the opportunity to be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was 

provided for said public hearing not more than 30 nor less than 

15 days prior to said public hearing by publication in The 

Doings, a newspaper of general circulation in this Village, there 

being no newspaper published in this Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission has made 

its report on the request for special use approvals, including 

its findings and recommendations, to this Mayor and Board of 

6A



 

 
  

Trustees, and this Mayor and Board of Trustees has duly 

considered said report, findings, and recommendations. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1:  All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public 

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference.  This Mayor and 

Board of Trustees find that the granting of special use approvals 

indicated herein is in the public good and in the best interests 

of the Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent 

with and fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge Zoning 

Ordinance as set forth in Section II thereof. 

 Section 2:  That this Mayor and Board of Trustees, after 

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the 

Plan Commission and other matters properly before it, in addition 

to the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as follows: 

 A. That the Petitioner for the special use for the 
property located at 212 Burr Ridge Parkway, Burr 
Ridge, Illinois, is Gene Halleran (hereinafter 
"Petitioner"). The Petitioner requests special use 
approval as per Section VIII.B.2.ff to permit a 
restaurant with alcoholic beverage sales and live 
entertainment and a special use approval as per 
Section VIII.B.2.x to permit outdoor dining for said 
restaurant.   

 
B. That the proposed restaurant is in a shopping center 

with a variety of commercial tenants including other 
restaurants. 
 



 

 
  

C. That the subject property is appropriate for 
restaurants with sales of alcoholic beverages, live 
entertainment, and outdoor dining. 

 
 Section 3:  That special use approvals for a restaurant 

with sales of alcoholic beverages, live entertainment, and 

outdoor dining are hereby granted for the property commonly known 

as 212 Burr Ridge Parkway and identified by the Permanent Real 

Estate Index Numbers of 18-30-301-001; and 18-30-305-003. 

 Section 4:  That the special use is subject to the following 

terms and conditions: 

1. The special use shall be limited to Gene Halleran and 
shall be null and void should Gene Halleran no longer 
have ownership interest in the restaurant consisting 
of approximately 4,200 square feet commonly known as 
212 Burr Ridge Parkway.  

2. Outdoor dining shall conform to the requirements of 
Section VII.A.5 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

3. The enclosure of the outdoor dining area and design of 
outdoor furniture shall match the adjacent Dao 
Restaurant subject to staff review and approval.  

4. Hours of operation for the restaurant and outdoor 
dining areas shall comply with Section VIII.A.11.c of 
the Zoning Ordinance. 

5. The restaurant shall comply with the following parking 
management conditions: 
a. All employees shall park behind the building or 

west of the shopping center main entryway. 
b. Valet parking shall be provided each and every 

evening that the restaurant is open for business.   
c. Four parking spaces shall be designated in the 

parking lot for staging of valet parking and 
under no circumstances shall the drive aisle/fire 
lane be used for valet parking or staging of valet 
parking. 

d. At all times, valet customer vehicles shall be 
parked west of the shopping center main entryway.  
Before 8 pm each evening, valet customer vehicles 
shall be parked west of the first two double rows 



 

 
  

(four single rows) of parking spaces that are 
west of the main entryway.  

 
 Section 5:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication as 

required by law.  The Acting Village Clerk is hereby directed 

and ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

 

 PASSED this 11th day of January 2021, by the Corporate 

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES:  
   
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT:  
        
  
 APPROVED by the Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge on this 
11th day of January 2021. 
 

  

 Mayor 

ATTEST:  

  

Acting Village Clerk  
 



ORDINANCE NO. A-834-___-21 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION FROM THE  
BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE TO PERMIT A RESTAURANT IN COUNTY 
LINE SQUARE WITHOUT THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES  

(Z-15-2020: 212 Burr Ridge Parkway – Halleran) 

 WHEREAS, an application for a variation from the Village 

of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance for certain real estate has been 

filed with the Assistant Village Administrator of the Village 

of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, and said 

application has been referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals of 

said Village and has been processed in accordance with the Burr 

Ridge Zoning Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, said Zoning Board of Appeals of this Village held 

a public hearing on the question of granting said zoning 

variation on November 16, 2020 and December 7, 2020, at the Burr 

Ridge Village Hall, at which time all persons desiring to be 

heard were given the opportunity to be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was 

provided for said public hearing not more than 30 nor less than 

15 days prior to said public hearing by publication in The 

Doings, a newspaper of general circulation in this Village, 

there being no newspaper published in this Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Board of Appeals 

has made its report on the request for zoning variation, 

including its findings and recommendations, to this Mayor and 

6B



 

 
 -2- 

Board of Trustees; and this Mayor and Board of Trustees has duly 

considered said report, findings, and recommendations. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1: All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public 

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference.  This Mayor and 

Board of Trustees find that the granting of the zoning variation 

indicated herein are in the public good and in the best interests 

of the Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent 

with and fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge 

Zoning Ordinance as set forth in Section II thereof. 

Section 2: That this Mayor and Board of Trustees, after 

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the 

Zoning Board of Appeals and other matters properly before it, 

in addition to the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as 

follows: 

A. That the Petitioner for the variation for the property 
located at 212 Burr Ridge Parkway, Burr Ridge, 
Illinois, is Gene Halleran (hereinafter "Petitioner"). 
The Petitioner requests a variation from Section 
XI.C.13 to permit a restaurant in a shopping center 
without the required number of parking spaces. 

 
B. That the proposed restaurant results in the shopping 

center requiring approximately 35 more parking spaces 
than is currently available within the shopping center.  
 



 

 
 -3- 

C. That documentation was provided indicating that based 
on the varying hours of operation of businesses within 
the shopping center, sufficient parking is available 
during the peak hours of the proposed restaurant. 
 

D. That the petitioner has agreed to provide valet parking 
so that the customer vehicles may be parked at the far 
west end of the shopping center where parking is most 
available during the peak hours of the proposed 
restaurant. 

 
Section 3: That a variation from Section XI.C.13 to permit 

a restaurant in a shopping center without the required number 

of parking spaces is hereby granted for the property commonly 

known as 212 Burr Ridge Parkway and identified with the 

Permanent Real Estate Index Numbers of 18-30-301-001; and 18-

30-305-003. 

 Section 4: That the variation is subject to the following  
 
conditions:  

1. All employees shall park behind the building or west 
of the shopping center main entryway. 

2. Valet parking shall be provided each and every 
evening that the restaurant is open for business.   

3. Four parking spaces shall be designated in the 
parking lot for staging of valet parking and under 
no circumstances shall the drive aisle/fire lane be 
used for valet parking or staging of valet parking. 

4. At all times, valet customer vehicles shall be 
parked west of the shopping center main entryway.  
Before 8 pm each evening, valet customer vehicles 
shall be parked west of the first two double rows 
(four single rows) of parking spaces that are west 
of the main entryway.  
 

 Section 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication 



 

 
 -4- 

as required by law.  The Acting Village Clerk is hereby directed 

and ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

 PASSED this 11th day of January 2021, by the Corporate 

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as 

follows: 

 AYES:   

 NAYS:   

 ABSENT:  

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge on this 

11th day of January 2021. 

 

  

 
Mayor 

  

ATTEST:  

  
Acting Village Clerk 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. A-___-__-21  

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR A MEDICAL OFFICE 

(Z-12-2020: 7512 County Line Road - Giadla) 

 WHEREAS, an application for an amendment to a special use 

for certain real estate has been filed with the Assistant Village 

Administrator of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage 

Counties, Illinois, and said application has been referred to 

the Plan Commission of said Village and has been processed in 

accordance with the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, said Plan Commission of this Village held a public 

hearing on the question of granting said special use on September 

21, 2020 and October 19, 2020, at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 

at which time all persons desiring to be heard were given the 

opportunity to be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was 

provided for said public hearing not more than 30 nor less than 

15 days prior to said public hearing by publication in The Doings 

Weekly, a newspaper of general circulation in this Village, there 

being no newspaper published in this Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission has made 

its report on the request for special uses, including its 

findings and recommendations, to this Mayor and Board of 

Trustees, and this Mayor and Board of Trustees has duly 

6C



 

 
  

considered said report, findings, and recommendations. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1:  All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public 

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference. This Mayor and 

Board of Trustees find that the granting of special use indicated 

herein is in the public good and in the best interests of the 

Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent with and 

fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge Zoning 

Ordinance as set forth in Section II thereof. 

 Section 2:  That this Mayor and Board of Trustees, after 

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the 

Plan Commission and other matters properly before it, in addition 

to the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as follows: 

A. That the Petitioner for the special use for the 
property located at 7512 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, 
Illinois, is Peter Giadla (hereinafter "Petitioner"). 
The Petitioner requests a special use for a medical 
office as a tenant in an existing building. 

B. That the special use will not detract from the public 
health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

C. That the special use will not adversely impact any 
adjacent properties. 

 
 Section 3:  That the special use for a medical office as a 

tenant in an existing building is hereby granted for the property 

commonly known as 7512 County Line Road and identified by the 



 

 
  

Permanent Real Estate Index Number of: 09-25-402-018. 

 Section 4:   That approval of the amended special use 

shall be subject to the following conditions: 

1. The special use permit shall be limited to Balance 
Chiropractic Medicine at 7512 County Line Road in a 
manner consistent with the submitted business plan, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The special use shall 
be null and void at such time that Balance Chiropractic 
Medicine no longer occupies the space at 7512 County 
Line Road or at which time there is an assignment or 
termination of the lease for the space at 7512 County 
Line Road. 
  

2. The business hours of Balance Chiropractic Medicine 
shall be limited to 7:00am-6:00pm on Monday-Friday, 
7:00am-3:00pm on Saturday, and closed on Sunday.  
 

3. The petitioner shall provide drainage, landscaping and 
fencing improvements as follows: 
 
a. The rear yard landscaping area shall be improved 

consistent with the concept plans attached hereto 
as Exhibit B.   

b. A solid row of arborvitae shall be provided 
adjacent to the edge of pavement that is parallel 
to the rear property line.  Said arborvitae shall 
be at least 6 foot tall at the time of planting 
and with sufficient space for staggering and 
sufficient girth to fill the intervening space. 

c. Sporadic plantings shall be provided on the west 
side of the fence for softening the appearance of 
the fence. 

d. The final engineering and landscaping for these 
improvements shall be subject to the review and 
approval of the Village Engineer. 

e. All landscaping and fencing improvements shall be 
maintained by the property owner in perpetuity. 

 
 Section 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication 

as required by law.  The Acting Village Clerk is hereby directed 



 

 
  

and ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

 
 PASSED this 11th day of January 2021, by the Corporate 

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES:   
 
NAYS:    
 
ABSENT:  
  
   

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge on this 

11th day of January 2021. 

 

  

 Mayor 

ATTEST:  

  

Acting Village Clerk  
 



Chiropractor Office 8/10/20 

Detailed description of the business or business plan that describes hours of 

operation, anticipated number of customers & employees, products and 
services provided, or any additional information or marketing about the 
intended business, 

Chiropractic office providing chiropractic, rehab and other 

health services. Hours of operation to be Monday thru 

Saturday 7 AM to 7PM. Anticipating 3-5 employees and 

potential 150-200 patient encounters per week. Other 

services will include massage and cold/ laser therapy. 

EXHIBIT A



BACK AREA RENDERING EXHIBIT B







962669-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R -__-21 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ACTING FINANCE DIRECTOR 
FOR THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

WHEREAS, due to the extended absence of the Village’s Finance Director, the corporate 

authorities of the Village have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village to appoint 

Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson to the position of Acting Finance Director, in order to 

ensure proper supervision over the Village’s Finance Department and management of various 

accounting and financial controls of the Village. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1:  The Board of Trustees hereby appoints Amy Nelson to the position of Acting 

Finance Director for the Village of Burr Ridge with all of the duties and obligations attendant to 

the position of Finance Director for the Village and as set forth in Article VI, entitled “Finance 

Department,” of Chapter 2, entitled “Administration,” of the Village Code for the Village of Burr 

Ridge.   

Section 2. Amy Nelson shall serve in the position of Acting Finance Director for the 

Village of Burr Ridge at an annual salary of One Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars ($110,000.00), 

and for an indefinite term, pending further action of the Village Board. 

Section 3:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

ADOPTED this 11th day of January, 2021, by the corporate authorities of the Village of 

Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED this 11th day of January, 2021. 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Acting Village Clerk 

7A



BLR 14220 (Rev. 02/08/19)

Resolution for Maintenance  
Under the Illinois Highway Code

Printed 01/06/21

Resolution Type

Original

Section Number

21-00000-01-GM

BE IT RESOLVED, by the 
Governing Body Type

Mayor and Board of Trustees of the
Local Public Agency Type

Village of 

Name of Local Public Agency
Burr Ridge Illinois that there is hereby appropriated the sum of

DollarsThree Hundred and Seventy Thousand and Five Hundred ( )  $370,500.00 

of Motor Fuel Tax funds for the purpose of maintaining streets and highways under the applicable provisions of Illinois Highway Code from

Beginning Date
01/01/21 to

Ending Date
12/31/21

Resolution Number

$370,500.00

.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that only those operations as listed and described on the approved Estimate of Maintenance Costs, 
including supplemental or revised estimates approved in connection with this resolution, are eligible for maintenance with Motor Fuel Tax 
funds during the period as specified above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that
Local Public Agency Type

Village of 
Name of Local Public Agency

Burr Ridge

shall submit within three months after the end of the maintenance period as stated above, to the Department of Transportation, on forms 
available from the Department, a certified statement showing expenditures and the balances remaining in the funds authorized for 
expenditure by the Department under this appropriation, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit four (4) ceritified originals of this resolution to the district office 
of the Department of Transportation.

I
Name of Clerk

 Sue Schaus
Local Public Agency Type

Village Clerk in and for said 
Local Public Agency Type

Village

of 
Name of Local Public Agency

Burr Ridge in the State of Illinois, and keeper of the records and files thereof, as 

provided by statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the

Governing Body Type
Mayor and Board of Trustees of

Name of Local Public Agency
Burr Ridge at a meeting held on

Date
01/11/21

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this

.

Day
11th day of

Month, Year
 January,    2021 .

(SEAL) Clerk Signature

APPROVED

Regional Engineer 
Department of Transportation Date

7B



BLR 14222 (Rev. 10/01/20)

Local Public Agency General Maintenance

Page 1 of 1Printed 01/06/21

Estimate of Maintenance Costs Submittal Type Original
Maintenance Period

Local Public Agency

Village of Burr Ridge

County

DuPage

Section Number

21-00000-01-GM

Beginning

01/01/21

Ending

12/31/21

Maintenance Items

Maintenance 
Operation

Maint 
Eng 

Category
Insp. 
Req.

Material Categories/
Point of Delivery or 
Work Performed by 

an Outside Contractor Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost

Total 
Maintenance 

Operation 
Cost

2021 MFT Road 
Program

IV Yes Resurfacing Contract  $978,200.00 

 Total Operation Cost  $978,200.00 

Estimate of Maintenance Costs Summary

Maintenance MFT Funds RBI Funds Other Funds Estimated Costs
Local Public Agency Labor

Local Public Agency Equipment

Materials/Contracts(Non Bid Items)

Materials/Deliver & Install/Materials Quotations (Bid Items)

Formal Contract (Bid Items)  $370,500.00  $607,700.00  $978,200.00 

Maintenance Total  $370,500.00  $607,700.00  $978,200.00 

Estimated Maintenance Eng Costs Summary

Maintenance Engineering MFT Funds RBI Funds Other Funds Total Est Costs

Preliminary Engineering

Engineering Inspection

Material Testing

Advertising

Bridge Inspection Engineering

Maintenance Engineering Total

Total Estimated Maintenance  $370,500.00  $607,700.00  $978,200.00 

Remarks

SUBMITTED

Local Public Agency Official Date

Title

Dir. of Public Works/Village Engineer

County Engineer/Superintendent of Highways Date

APPROVED

Regional Engineer 
Department of Transportation Date



Proposed FY 21-22 Capital Improvement Program
Subdivision 2019 Last Rehab Area  Cost/sy Project

or Street From To PCR Year (sy) $ Cost
2021 Road Program (Resurfacing)  #31-8010-70-7077

Dartmouth Ct ELM ST END 74.8 2006 2,210   21.60$    50,200.00$     

Lakewood Subdivision 76.4 weighted average PCR 265,000.00$    
HEATHER DR 87TH ST LAKEWOOD CIR 74.3 2002 3,760   21.60$    81,300.00$     
HEATHER CT LAKEWOOD CIR NORTH END 80.9 2002 880      21.60$    19,100.00$     
LAKEWOOD CIR WEDGEWOOD DR PARK AVE 70.0 2001 3,640   21.60$    78,700.00$     
LAKEWOOD CIR PARK AVE HEATHER DR 84.3 2002 1,050   21.60$    22,700.00$     
WEDGEWOOD DR LAKEWOOD CIR NORTH END 77.4 2001 540      21.60$    11,700.00$     
WEDGEWOOD DR 87TH ST LAKEWOOD CIR 84.3 2001 2,380   21.60$    51,500.00$     

Braemoor Units 1 & 2 (Partial) 68.0 weighted average PCR 101,100.00$    
BENNACOTT LN DOLFOR COVE EAST END 64.1 2002 995      21.60$    21,500.00$     
PARK AVE TAMERTON PKWY LAKEWOOD CIR 63.6 2002 1,930   21.60$    41,700.00$     
PARK AVE 83RD ST KIRKWOOD COVE 71.6 2002 670      21.60$    14,500.00$     
PARK AVE KIRKWOOD COVE TAMERTON PKWY 77.1 2002 1,080   21.60$    23,400.00$     

Braemoor Estates 75.9 weighted average PCR 315,200.00$    
81ST ST GARFIELD AVE GARFIELD AVE 79.9 2002 830      21.60$    18,000.00$     
GARFIELD AVE 79TH ST PINE TREE LN 62.6 2002 3,680   21.60$    79,500.00$     
GARFIELD AVE PINE TREE LN 81ST ST 63.0 2002 2,690   21.60$    58,200.00$     
GARFIELD AVE 81ST ST 83RD ST 55.6 2002 860      21.60$    18,600.00$     
PARK AVE 81ST ST KATHRYN CT 77.8 2002 1,920   21.60$    41,500.00$     
PARK AVE KATHRYN CT 83RD ST 77.8 2002 1,740   21.60$    37,600.00$     
KATHRYN CT 83RD ST PARK AVE 79.6 2002 2,860   21.60$    61,800.00$     

Old Oak Highlands Subdivision 71.6 weighted average PCR 111,700.00$    
HAMILTON AVE 79TH ST HIGHLAND CT 61.2 2006 1,760   21.60$    38,100.00$     
HAMILTON AVE HIGHLAND CT OLD OAK CT 73.9 2006 1,240   21.60$    26,800.00$     
HIGHLAND CT HAMILTON AVE WEST END 79.6 2006 1,070   21.60$    23,200.00$     
OLD OAK CT HAMILTON AVE WEST END 77.8 2006 1,090   21.60$    23,600.00$     

Preventative Maintenance & Ancillary Services 135,000.00$    
  Crack Sealing 60,000.00$     
  Misc. Patching 10,000.00$     
  Pavement Marking 20,000.00$     
  Material Testing 15,000.00$     
  Municipal Parking Lots 30,000.00$     

Subtotal Proposed 2021 Road Program Contracts: 978,200.00$     
LESS MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) APPROPRIATION (370,500.00)$    

Estimated General Fund Obligation for Capital Improvements 607,700$      

8A



M
A

D
I S

O
N

 S
T

91ST ST

83RD ST

87TH ST

79TH ST

57TH ST

PLAINFIELD RD

97TH ST

60TH ST

81ST ST

JEANS RD

DEVON DR

D
R

E
W

 A
V

68TH ST

89TH ST

67TH PL

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D
 R

D

77TH ST

HILLSIDE LN

S
K

Y
L

IN
E

 D
R

O
A

K
 S

T

71ST ST

O
N

E
IL

L
 D

R

S
O

PE
R

 R
D

73RD PL

WATERFORD DR

90TH ST

74TH ST

82ND ST

63RD ST

TOWER DR

94TH ST

MOCKINGB IRD LN

58TH ST

60TH PL

93RD PL

MIDWAY DR

HILL RD

HARVESTER DR

80TH ST

W
A

L
R

E
D

O
N

 A
V

95TH PL

62ND ST

69TH ST

D
O

L
F

O
R

 C
V

C
L Y

N
D

E
R

V
E

N
 R

D

SOMERSET RD

EXECUTIVE DR

T
H

U
R

L
O

W
 S

T

56TH ST

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
 D

R

FERN ST

ASHTON DR

59TH ST

TI
M

B
ER

LA
KE

 D
R

E
LE

A
N

O
R

 P
L

KIRKWOOD COVE

CENTRAL AV

94TH PL

LA
K

E
 R

ID
G

E
 D

R

KRA ML DR

80TH PL

58th Pl

RIDGEMOOR DR

ENTRANCE RD

61ST PL

CAS CADE CIR

73RD ST

B
R

O
O

K
B

A
N

K
 R

D SUNRIS
E AV

68TH PL

58TH PL

T
O

M
L

IN
 D

R

VALLEY VIEW DR

LEVE
LAN

D R
D

ARROWHEAD TR

CHANTICLEER DR

CHARLESTON RD

S
U

N
S

E
T

 R
D

73RD CT

SHORE CT

HIDDEN LAKE DR

NORRIS DR

CAMELOT DR

64TH ST

NIELSON LN

GLENMORA LN

85TH ST

LAKEVIEW LN

GERMAN CHURCH RD

GODAIR CIR

R
A

IN
T

R
E

E
 L

N

CHAUCER CT

ROGERS CT

Castine St

TODOR CT

TAMERTON PKWY

MARTIN DR

SUNSET RIDGE RD

LEONARD LN

THERESE CT

E
N

C
LA

V
E

 D
R

CIRCLE RIDGE DR

BURR RIDGE CLUB DR

MORGAN CT

PARKVIEW PL

WILLOWBROOK CENTRE PKWY

PROVENCAL DR

SHILOH C
T

WOOD CREEK DR

GRANT CT

WESTMINSTER DR

LAKEWOOD C IR

ARCADIA CT

MEADOW CT

W
a

te
rv

i e
w

 C
t

ANDREW CT

SHENANDOAH CT

ROCKWELL CT

GARFIELD RDG

WOODGATE DR

OLD SURREY RD

SHEPHARD LN

HEATHROW CT

O
A

K
H

IL
L

 C
T

KINGSWOOD CT

CONWAY CT

DOUGSHIRE CT

TANGLEWOOD LN

MARYBETH CT

CHERRYWOOD LN

CAMBRIDGE DR

ELMW OOD PL

CLUBSIDE CT

PEPPER MILL CT

RIDGEFIELD LN

Old Oak Ct

CHESTNUT HILLS CIR

MEADOWBROOK LN

Highland Ct

C
O

V
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

REGENT CT

TORI CT

S
U

T
T

O
N

 P
L

BRIARWOOD DR

HUNTER CT

BEL AIRE CT

CREEKSIDE CT

BRIDLE  CT

H
A

N
O

V
E

R
 C

T

COUNTRYSIDE CT

LA
KE

 R
ID

G
E C

T

KERI LN

SA
D

DLE
 C

T

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T C

T

COTTONWOOD CT

HIDDEN BROOK LN

Kingery Quarter

Jackson St

BERKSHIRE CT

91ST ST

D
O

L
F

O
R

 C
V

83RD ST

57TH ST

MONROE ST

87TH ST

V
IN

E
 S

T

72ND ST

87TH ST

T
H

U
R

L
O

W
 S

T

59TH ST

62ND ST

79TH ST

75TH ST

79TH ST

KRAML DR

GERMAN CHURCH RD

94TH ST

55TH ST

JEANS RD

80TH PL

81ST ST

89TH ST

CIRCLE AV

74TH ST

IVY LN

G
A

R
F

IE
L

D
 A

V

72ND ST

75TH ST

G
R

A
N

T
 S

T

63RD ST

58TH ST

H
A

M
IL

T
O

N
 A

V

56TH ST

59TH ST

73RD ST

KE
N

M
A

R
E 

D
R

79TH ST

JOLIE
T R

D

10TH ST
55TH ST

75TH ST

87TH ST

P
O

N
TIA

C
 D

R

85TH ST

72ND  ST

G
R

A
N

D
 A

V
E

71ST ST

JOHNSTON RD

74TH ST

77TH ST

BURR RIDGE PKWY

70TH PL

BU
R

R
 O

AK
 L

N

BIRCH LN

CARRIAGE WAY

OAK KNOLL DR

73RD ST

COCHISE DR

CIRCLE DR

C
H

A
S

E
M

O
O

R
 D

R

BLACKHAW K TRL

S
T

A
R

K
 D

R

71ST PL

NUEPORT DR

PARK LN

LA
W

N
 D

R

BRIDLE  PATH LN

SURREY LN

84TH PL

STIRRUP LN

STRATFORD DR

LONGMEADOW LN

OAK LN

FOX LN

PARK PL

TECUMSEH DR

AR
BO

R
 AVE

BRIARWOOD LN

SHABBONA RD

PUBLIC ST

86TH ST

THUNDERBIRD DR

CHEROKEE DR

CREST LN

O
R

LA
K

 D
R

5TH AVE

RIDGE LN

WOODGLEN LN

OSCEOLA TRL

MAPLE LN

C
R

ES
C

E
N

T
 C

T

PAMELA CIR

GREGFORD RD

RUCCI CT

LONGWOOD DR

OLD MILL LN

85TH PL

LINDEN LN

C
O

M
M

O
N

W
E

A
L T

H
 A

V
E

LINCOLNSHIRE DR

TRENT C
T

SHADY LANE DR

SENECA CT

AMBRIANCE DR

SOUTH DR

ERIN LN

INDIAN WOODS DR

INDIAN WOOD LN

CHIPPEWA CT

HAMPTON CT

JOYCE LN

CARRIAGE PL

80TH ST

EASTON PL

MAPLEWOOD RD

N
O

R
T

H
G

A
T

E
 P

L

ACACIA DR

WOODSIDE CT

SANTA FE LN

EASTGATE RD

BRIARWOOD CT

SOUTHGATE CT

BRIG HTON PL

T
U

D
O

R
 C

IR

STI
R

RU
P 

PL

C
R

O
W

N
 CIR

UNKNOWN

U
N

K
N

O
W

N

HERITAGE AVE

OAK LN

71ST ST

BALMORAL
CT

84TH PL

ALGONQUIN DR

86TH ST

ADLAI STEVENSON EXPY

UNKNOWN

LA
W

N
 D

R

87TH ST

BURR RIDGE CORPORATE PARK

CARRIAGE WAY

AMBRIANCE!

WALKER PARK

CARRIAGE WAY CLUB

ARROWHEAD FARM

SAVOY CLUB

CHASEMOOR

PLEASANTDALE NORTH

HIGHLAND FIELDS

FLAGG CREEK WRD

KING BURWAERT HOME

BURR OAKS GLEN 1-2

KAY

HEATHERFIELDS

BURR OAKS GLEN 3-4

BURR RIDGE MEADOWS

DEERVIEW

ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTATES

BRIDLE PATH

CROSS CREEK

TOWER DR/ BURR RIDGE PARK

SHADY OAKS

PINE CREST

HIGH RIDGE

WOODVIEW ESTATES SOUTH

LONGFIELD HILL

GENENDEL'S LITTLE FARMS

LONGWOOD

OAK WERTH

DICOSOLA'S SUBDIVISION

HERITAGE ESTATES

ACRES OF BURR RIDGE ESTATES

TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH

EMIL HONECK SUBDIVISION

PLEASANTVIEW FIRE DEPARTMENT

FALLINGWATER

CASE NEW HOLLAND

BARTLETT'S, ROBERT, HINSDALE COUNTRY SIDE, PT.

BABSON PARK

OAK RIDGE CREEK

BRAEMOOR

DEVON RIDGE

MADISON CLUB

FIELDSTONE

KRAML ESTATES

HARVESTER PARK

LAKE RIDGE SUB

HOLLAND RESUB.

DEVON OF BURR RIDGE

BRAEMOOR ESTATES

HINSDALE FARMS

HINSDALE INDUSTRIAL PARK

STONEHEDGE ESTATES

SOUTH HINSDALE ESTATES, PT.

LAKE RIDGE CLUB

LAKEWOOD OF BURR RIDGE

BURR RIDGE CLUB AREA

BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL COMMON SUB.

OAK CREEK CLUB

CAMBRIDGE ESTATES

ENCLAVE, THE

FOREST EDGE SUB.
SPACE VALLEY SUB.

DEVON WOODS

SUCHER'S SUB.

COUNTY LINE ESTATES

OAK GROVE SUB

DEER PATH LAKES OF BURR RIDGE

COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATES

WILDWOOD

PARKVIEW OF BURR RIDGE RESUB.

WOODCREEK OF BURR RIDGE

ELM SCHOOL

GOWER SCHOOL

FI
EL

D
ST

O
N

E 
C

LU
B

KISER RESUB.

RID
GE FARM SUB.

WOODLAND PARK

CENTRAL DECAL SUB.

TURNBERRY OF BURR RIDGE

KOPECKY'S RESUB.

JACK PINES

K
O

R
IN

E
K

'S
 O

W
N

E
R

S
 A

.P ., P
T.

SPRING ACRES

JARO'S RESUB.

CORGIATS SUB.

MILL CREEK SUB.

CARLIN A.P.

TODOR MANOR OF BURR RIDGE

PEPPER MILL CT.

SKINNER'S RESUB.

SCHONLAU'S SUB.

PIERSON SUB.

C. M. R
EALTY RESUB.

KUYBIDA'S SUB.

SODETZ SUB

C
O

V
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

O
U

R
T

GRASSO'S A.P.

PROVENCE PLACE SUB.

STONE CREEK ESTATES SUB.

WARHAUS' RESUB.

IRISHS ASSMT. PLAT

GATZ'S RESUB.

GHABEN'S SUB.

COLT ESTATES

BILIK'S RESUB.

SVEC'S RESUB.

ROTANS' RESUB.SMOLA'S ASSMT. PLAT

HIGH GROVE BURR RIDGE SUB.

CHESTNUT HILLS CONDO.

SEIGFORD, JACOB & GEILOR PLAT, PT.

PLAT OF SURVEY OF PT. SE 1/4, PT.

GRANT COURT SUB.

MEADOWBROOK PLACE

WOODGATE OF BURR RIDGE

PINE TREE OF BURR RIDGE

PARK AVENUE RESUB.

BARNARD'S ASSMT. PLAT

NORRIS RESUB., PT.

BURR RIDGE MIDDLE SCHOOL

OWEN'S PLAT OF SURVEY

BRCIK'S DIVISION

SYLVAN, RULDOLPH, JR., PLAT OF SURVEY

CHOCOLA, DR. RONALD, M.D., ASSMT. PLAT

IPPISCH'S RESUB.

BRUSH HILL TRUST SUB.

BIAGETTI'S SUB.

ALBERTINIS ACRES, PLAT OF

BARBALIC'S SUB.

LAURA LEE RESUB.

DARTMOUTH CT. OF BURR RIDGE

FRONTAGE ROAD SUB.

BEAUCHAMP'S A.P.

ASSMT. DIVISION OF S1/2 OF SECTIONS 1&2, ALL SECTI

BURR RIDGE PARK DIST. A.P. 1

N & D RESUB.

HEADY'S A.P.

JMR'BI LAND DIVISION

PANTKE'S RESUB.

DAVIS, D.D., PLAT OF SURVEY

KOUKOL'S, F., ASSMT. PLAT

WEST 62ND STREET SUB.

MOLNAR'S RESUB.

GUNTER-REED RESUB.

SCHAEFFER'S RESUB., PT.

EXCHANGE NATIONAL BANK'S ASSMT. PLAT

VINCENT PETERSON'S RESUB.

PAGEMARK'S SECOND RESUB.

CIHAK, BUNSIE, ASSMT. PLAT

MC GARRITY A.P.

PANICO'S 83RD ST. A.P.

BEECHAN & DILL BUILDERS INC. A. P. 1

MARTIN'S RESUB.

BRAEWOOD CONDO.

MARCHESE RESUB.

ERVEN'S RESUB., PT.

TRI-STATE FIRE DEPARTMENT

ABEN RUE SUB.

7700-38 SOUTH GRANT ST. CONDO.

KELLERS, E.L. & A. PLAT OF SURVEY

ZISSIMOPOULOS A.P.

HALL'S A.P.

DOMMASCH'S RESUB.

EGGERT LAND DIVISION A. P.

BANACH'S A. P.

KOVACIC SUB.

BRADLEY ESTATES

Y.M.C.A.- OAK GROVE A.P.

ANDRYSIAK'S ASSMT. PLAT

UZUANIS' A.P.

RUSTIC ACRES SADDLE CLUB CORPORATION ASSMT. PLAT

BURR RIDGE PLACE TAX A.P.

YORK, R.R., PLAT OF SURVEY

LAWRENCE'S, GEORGE R., PLAT OF SURVEY

SCHOLL, A., JR., SURVEY

KRAUSE'S, OTTO C., PLAT OF SURVEY

DIEHL'S, JOHN, SURVEY

GRIFFITH'S, DAISY D., SURVEY

COMMONWEALTH EDISON CO. A.P.

Corporate Boundary

Right of Way

Parcels

Subdivisions of the Village of Burr Ridge

Created by Emily Zvolanek, GIS Intern, Burr Ridge Public Works Dept, 11 June 2008

0 1,200 2,400600 Feet

PROPOSED 2021 ROAD PROGRAM

Braemoor (Part of Units 1 & 2)  
Bennacott Ln 

Park Ave South Of 83rd Street 
Braemoor Estates: 
81st St at Garfield Ave 

Garfield Ave South of 79th Street

Park Ave North of 83rd St. 
Kathryn Ct 

Lakewood Subdivision 
Heather Dr & Ct 
Lakewood Cir 
Wedgewood Dr 

Old Oak Highlands: 

Hamilton Ave South of 79th 
Street 
Highland Ct 
Old Oak Ct 

Dartmouth Ct 



 

 

2 0 1 9  S T R E E T  S U R V E Y  R E P O R T  
Prepared for the Mayor and members of the Street Policy Committee 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

David Preissig, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 

Village of Burr Ridge 
451 Commerce Street 

Burr Ridge, Illinois  60527 
(630) 323-4733 

 

N o v em b er  12 ,  2 01 9



Introduction 

Every two years, Village Engineering staff performs an evaluation of each segment of roadway in 
the Village, which includes over 93 miles of roadway.  The purpose of the biennial study is to 
document the rate of pavement deterioration, and to develop a scientifically based condition 
rating for each roadway segment.  This data is then used to determine pavement rehabilitation 
priorities and to ensure that pavement maintenance is programmed in such a manner as to 
maximize benefits, minimize costs, and provide equity amongst stakeholders. The objective of 
the Road Program is to budget funds for resurfacing and other maintenance activities at such 
time when the work will have the greatest economic benefit.   

The 2019 Street Rating Survey is presented on the following pages, and data sorted by: 

1) Pavement Condition Rating (PCR),

2) Street Name

3) Subdivision Name/Neighborhood Area

dpreissig
Cross-Out

dpreissig
Cross-Out



Utilizing primarily the Pavement Condition Rating (PCR) tabulations from the 2019 Street Rating 
Survey, while considering anticipated schedules for private development, water main improvement 
projects, and other Village improvements, staff develops a comprehensive plan for the Road Program 
and Capital Improvements budget.  Staff is committed to ensuring a balanced, nominal budget while 
ensuring a sustainable pavement condition on the Village’s street network, which incorporates a 
progressive pavement maintenance strategy.   

The following chart highlights current (2019) pavement conditions Village-wide: 

Village Roadways Total % of 
Total 

Asphalt  930,400 sq yd 98.7% 
Concrete               11,940 sq yd 1.3% 

            942,340 sq yd 

System-wide PCR PCR = 85.2 OVERALL 
PCR < 70               48,240 sq yd 5.1% 
PCR 71 - 80             233,820 sq yd 24.8% 
PCR 81 - 90             240,060 sq yd 25.5% 
PCR > 91             420,220 sq yd 44.6% 

DATE <=2006             353,730 sq yd 37.5% 

Cracksealed             543,350 sq yd 57.7% 
Cracksealed PCR = 
88 (AVERAGE) 

At the Village’s prior funding levels, the estimated resurfacing cycle for Burr Ridge streets has grown 
between 16 and 26 years.  Also, a backlog of older street pavement is progressing toward its rehabilitation 
stage.  



2019 STREET SURVEY REPORT 

BY PCR RATING



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

90TH ST MADISON ST VILLAGE LIMITS 90TH STREET DUPAGE 48.0 ASPH. Township
CREEKWOOD DR FOX LN SOUTH END CREEKWOOD DRIVE COOK 53.5 ASPH. Private
GARFIELD AVE 81ST ST 83RD ST BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 55.6 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
NORMANDEE CT 74TH ST NORTH END WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 55.6 ASPH. Township  
71ST ST COMED SUBSTATION HARVESTER PARK 71ST STREET DUPAGE 57.2 ASPH. 1997 Resurface  1997
SHADY LN DITCH LEE CT BURR RIDGE ESTATES COOK 59.1 ASPH. 2004 Reconstruct  2024 Resurface 2004
HAMILTON AVE 79TH ST HIGHLAND CT OLD OAK HIGHLANDS DUPAGE 61.2 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
GARFIELD AVE 79TH ST PINE TREE LN BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 62.6 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
87TH ST JOHNSTON RD OAK KNOLL DR HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 62.8 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2000
GARFIELD AVE PINE TREE LN 81ST ST BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 63.0 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
CHIPPEWA CT ARROWHEAD FARM DR WEST END ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 63.3 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
PARK AVE TAMERTON PKWY LAKEWOOD CIR BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 63.6 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2022 Resurface 1970
CREEKWOOD DR 79TH ST FOX LN CREEKWOOD DRIVE COOK 63.8 ASPH. Private
BENNACOTT LN DOLFOR COVE EAST END BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 64.1 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2021 Resurface 1972
CABERNET CT COUNTY LINE RD WEST END CABERNET DUPAGE 64.7 ASPH. 2003 Constructed  2022 Resurface 2003
89TH ST MADISON ST STAFFORD LIMIT STAFFORD OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 66.5 ASPH. 2008 Reconstruct 2024 Resurface 2008
89TH ST STAFFORD LIMIT EAST END 89TH STREET DUPAGE 66.6 ASPH. 1990 Annexed 2024 Resurface
ROYAL DR WESTMINSTER DR MORGAN CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 66.7 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
FOREST HILL RD BURR OAK LN 77TH ST BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 68.7 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1979
GRANT CT GRANT ST WEST END GRANT COURT DUPAGE 68.7 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 2001
90TH ST VILLAGE LIMIT VINE ST TURNBERRY DUPAGE 68.9 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  1956
FOREST EDGE CT FOREST EDGE DR EAST END FOREST EDGE DUPAGE 69.3 ASPH. 2003 Constructed  2023 Resurface 2003
HAMILTON AVE 77TH ST 79TH ST ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 69.8 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
LAKEWOOD CIR WEDGEWOOD DR PARK AVE LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 70.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1977
77TH ST DREW AVE COUNTY LINE RD ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 70.1 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
GRANT ST 63RD ST NORTH END (62ND ST) WILDWOOD 1ST ADD DUPAGE 70.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface  1956
77TH ST HAMILTON AVE DREW AVE ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 70.4 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
NAVAJO CT OMAHA DR NORTH END ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 70.5 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
ROYAL DR MORGAN CT TORI CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 71.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
BRIDEWELL DR BURR RIDGE PKWY BURR RIDGE PKWY BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 71.6 ASPH. 1997 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 1987
PARK AVE 83RD ST KIRKWOOD COVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 71.6 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2022 Resurface 1970
PUMP CTR PARKING   VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE COOK 71.7 ASPH. 1998 Resurface  1984
ENCLAVE DR ENCLAVE DR ENCLAVE DR ENCLAVE DUPAGE 72.0 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1988
HILLCREST DR PLAINFIELD RD DITCH SHADY OAKS COOK 72.0 ASPH. 2008 Reconstruct  2025 Resurface 2008
HAMILTON AVE 75TH ST 77TH ST ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 72.1 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
FOREST HILL RD 77TH ST CIRCLE DR ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTAT COOK 72.2 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1979
75TH ST HAMILTON AVE SOUTH FRONTAGE RD ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 72.3 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
LEE CT SHADY LN SOUTH END KAY COOK 72.3 ASPH. 2001 Constructed  2025 Resurface 2001
GARYWOOD DR TOMLIN DR TOMLIN CIR BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 72.5 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1983
SENECA CT ARROWHEAD FARM DR NORTH END ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 72.5 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
TOMLIN CIR TOMLIN DR GARYWOOD DR BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 72.7 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1983
BRIARWOOD LN LOT 1 GREENBRIAR CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 72.9 ASPH. 2018 Patching  2025 Resurface 1988
ARROWHEAD FARM DR OMAHA DR SOUTH END ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 73.1 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
BAY RUM CT KRAML DR EAST END KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 73.1 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
FOREST EDGE DR FOREST EDGE CT SOUTH END FOREST EDGE DUPAGE 73.1 ASPH. 2003 Constructed  2023 Resurface 2003
83RD ST SOUTH FRONTAGE RD SHORE DR 83RD STREET DUPAGE 73.3 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1970
GRANT ST HUNTER CT DEVON DR DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 73.4 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
TOMLIN DR TOMLIN CIR GARYWOOD DR BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 73.5 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1979
CLYNDERVEN RD 83RD ST KIRKWOOD COVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 73.6 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
DEVON DR ROYAL DR WEDGEWOOD DR DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 73.7 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
HAMILTON AVE HIGHLAND CT OLD OAK CT OLD OAK HIGHLANDS DUPAGE 73.9 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
ELM ST 59TH ST 60TH ST ELM STREET DUPAGE 74.0 ASPH. 2007 Resurface 2014 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
75TH ST DREW AVE SOUTH FRONTAGE RD ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 74.1 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
87TH ST COUNTY LINE RD JOHNSTON RD HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 74.1 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
DEVON DR GRANT ST DEVON CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 74.1 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
MADISON ST PROVENCAL DR 97TH ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 74.2 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
74TH ST FOREST HILL RD WOLF RD PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 74.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface  1956
HEATHER DR 87TH ST LAKEWOOD CIR LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 74.3 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1977
HUNTER CT GRANT ST EAST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 74.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
LONGWOOD DR COUNTY LINE RD EAST END LONGWOOD COOK 74.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1990
BRIARWOOD LN SHAG BARK LN GREENBRIAR CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 74.4 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1988
HANOVER CT WEDGEWOOD DR SOUTH END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 74.4 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD IL ROUTE 83 MEADOWBROOK DR SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 74.4 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2001
FOREST HILL RD CIRCLE DR 79TH ST ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTAT COOK 74.5 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1979
LINCOLNSHIRE DR MCCLINTOCK DR CHASEMOOR DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 74.7 ASPH. 2005 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1987
SHILOH CT KRAML DR EAST END KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 74.7 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
CARLISLE CT CAMELOT DR SOUTH END CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 74.8 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
DARTMOUTH CT ELM ST WEST END DARTMOUTH COURT DUPAGE 74.8 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
HILLCREST DR LEE CT HILLCREST CT BURR RIDGE ESTATES COOK 74.9 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1987
SHAG BARK LN WALNUT CT WHITE OAK CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 74.9 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
75TH ST HAMILTON AVE DREW AVE ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 75.0 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944

Village of Burr Ridge Page 1 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

BRIARWOOD CT WOODSIDE LN WEST END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 75.0 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1988
ELM ST 60TH ST PEPPERMILL CT ELM STREET DUPAGE 75.0 ASPH. 2007 Resurface 2014 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
KIRKWOOD COVE POWER LINES PARK AVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 75.2 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2022 Resurface 1970
ARROWHEAD FARM DR SENECA CT OMAHA DR ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 75.3 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
DEVON DR DEVON CT BRIDLE CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 75.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
HARVESTER DR NORTH FRONTAGE RD CHESTNUT HILLS DR HARVESTER DRIVE DUPAGE 75.4 ASPH. 1997 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 1997
HILLCREST DR HILLCREST CT RUCCI CT BURR RIDGE ESTATES COOK 75.5 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1987
CAMELOT DR CARLISLE CT CANTEBERRY DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 75.8 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
TURNBERRY DR 90TH ST TURNBERRY CT TURNBERRY DUPAGE 75.9 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  1990
OMAHA DR NAVAJO CT JOHNSTON RD ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 76.2 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
PARKVIEW PL DOLFOR COVE EAST END PARKVIEW DUPAGE 76.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1984
WOODCREEK DR 60TH PL WOODCREEK CT WOODCREEK DUPAGE 76.3 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  1987
VETERANS BLVD VETERANS BLVD END FAIR OAKS AT COUNTY LINE DUPAGE 76.6 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2004
TAMERTON PKWY POWER LINES PARK AVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 76.7 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
TURNBERRY DR TURNBERRY CT 91ST ST TURNBERRY DUPAGE 76.7 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  1990
60TH PL GARFIELD AVE WOODCREEK DR WOODCREEK DUPAGE 76.8 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1987
DOLFOR COVE BENNACOTT LN PARKVIEW PL BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 76.8 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
GRANT ST 87TH ST HUNTER CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 76.8 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
HILLCREST DR RUCCI CT DITCH BURR RIDGE ESTATES COOK 76.8 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2024 Resurface 1987
JOHNSTON RD 87TH ST CREST CT HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 76.9 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
81ST ST PARK AVE 81ST CT 81ST STREET DUPAGE 77.0 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  1956
ARROWHEAD FARM DR GERMAN CHURCH RD CHIPPEWA CT ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 77.0 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
PARK AVE KIRKWOOD COVE TAMERTON PKWY BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 77.1 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2022 Resurface 1970
ARROWHEAD FARM DR CHIPPEWA CT SENECA CT ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 77.2 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
GARYWOOD DR ERIN LN TOMLIN DR BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 77.2 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1983
KIMBERLY CT CAMELOT DR SOUTH END CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 77.2 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
CASTLE CT JOHNSTON RD SOUTH END HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 77.3 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
TOMLIN DR GREGFORD RD LAURIE LN BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 77.4 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1983
WEDGEWOOD DR LAKEWOOD CIR NORTH END LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 77.4 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1977
91ST ST ROYAL DR DEVON RIDGE DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 77.5 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
SHADY LN PLAINFIELD RD DITCH SHADY OAKS COOK 77.5 ASPH. 2009 Reconstruct  2025 Resurface 2009
WEDGEWOOD DR SADDLE CT REGENT CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 77.5 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
91ST ST FALLINGWATERS SUB MADISON ST 91ST STREET DUPAGE 77.6 ASPH. 2006 Widen/Resurf 2020 Cracksealing
OLD OAK CT HAMILTON AVE WEST END OLD OAK HIGHLANDS DUPAGE 77.8 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
60TH ST GARFIELD AVE SEDGLEY CT IPPISCH SUBDIVISION DUPAGE 78.0 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1956
JOHNSTON RD CROWN CT OMAHA DR HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 78.0 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
BRIARWOOD LN WOODSIDE LN SHAG BARK LN BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 78.1 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1988
83RD ST WATERVIEW CT CLYNDERVEN RD 83RD STREET DUPAGE 78.2 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
BRIDLE CT DEVON DR EAST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 78.2 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
87TH ST GRANT ST TODOR CT 87TH STREET DUPAGE 78.3 ASPH. 2009 Resurface  1989
CHESTNUT HILLS CIR CHESTNUT HILLS DR CHESTNUT HILLS DR CHESTNUT HILLS DUPAGE 78.3 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1998
DREW AVE 77TH ST 79TH ST ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 78.3 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
82ND ST MADISON ST EAST END 82ND STREET DUPAGE 78.5 ASPH. 2003 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
83RD ST SHORE DR MADISON ST 83RD STREET DUPAGE 78.5 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1970
WEDGEWOOD DR REGENT CT GLENMORA LN DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 78.5 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
KIRKWOOD COVE DOLFOR COVE POWER LINES BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 78.7 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2022 Resurface 1972
WOODSIDE LN 79TH ST BRIARWOOD LN BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 78.7 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
ELM ST PEPPERMILL CT ELM CT ELM STREET DUPAGE 78.9 ASPH. 2007 Resurface 2014 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
MORGAN CT ROYAL DR WEST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 79.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
RUCCI CT HILLCREST DR EAST END DICOSOLA'S SUBDIVISION COOK 79.0 ASPH. 1998 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 1998
OMAHA DR ARROWHEAD FARM DR NAVAJO CT ARROWHEAD FARM COOK 79.1 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2024 Resurface 1991
83RD ST CLYNDERVEN RD LAKE RIDGE DR 83RD STREET DUPAGE 79.3 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
REGENT CT WEDGEWOOD DR WEST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 79.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
ROYAL DR DEVON DR WESTMINSTER DR DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 79.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
DREW AVE 75TH ST 77TH ST ROBERT BARTL HINSD CNTRYSDDUPAGE 79.5 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2022 Resurface 1944
HIGHLAND CT HAMILTON AVE WEST END OLD OAK HIGHLANDS DUPAGE 79.6 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
KATHRYN CT 83RD ST PARK AVE BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 79.6 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD MADISON ST GRANT ST SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 79.6 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 1944
AINTREE LN DEVON DR SOUTH END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 79.8 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1989
62ND ST GARFIELD AVE WEST END WEST 62ND STREET DUPAGE 79.9 ASPH. 2006 Constructed  2021 Resurface 2006
CAMELOT DR KIMBERLY CT CHARLESTON DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 80.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
CLYNDERVEN RD KIRKWOOD COVE BRIARWOOD DR BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 80.0 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
CREST CT JOHNSTON RD SOUTH END HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 80.0 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
MADISON ST 91ST ST SHEPHARD LN MADISON STREET DUPAGE 80.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
ROYAL DR TORI CT 91ST ST DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 80.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
CLYNDERVEN RD BRIARWOOD DR CONWAY CT PARKVIEW DUPAGE 80.2 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1984
CROWN CT JOHNSTON RD SOUTH END HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 80.3 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
DEVON DR BRIDLE CT ROYAL DR DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 80.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
ELM ST ELM CT DARTMOUTH CT ELM STREET DUPAGE 80.3 ASPH. 2007 Resurface 2014 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
ENCLAVE DR 91ST ST ENCLAVE CT ENCLAVE DUPAGE 80.3 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1988
ASHTON DR GLENMORA LN NORMAN CT COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 80.4 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990

Village of Burr Ridge Page 2 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

FOREST EDGE DR 91ST ST FOREST EDGE CT FOREST EDGE DUPAGE 80.4 ASPH. 2003 Constructed  2023 Resurface 2003
SHAG BARK LN WOODSIDE LN WALNUT CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 80.4 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
CHARLESTON DR CAMELOT DR CAMBRIDGE DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 80.5 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
GARYWOOD DR PLAINFIELD RD ERIN LN LONGFIELD HILL COOK 80.5 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1983
HERITAGE DR JOHNSTON RD EAST END HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 80.5 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
KIRKWOOD COVE CLYNDERVEN RD WALREDON AVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 80.5 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
TAMERTON PKWY DOLFOR COVE POWER LINES BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 80.5 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
GARYWOOD DR TOMLIN CIR TOMLIN DR BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 80.7 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1983
SADDLE CT WEDGEWOOD DR EAST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 80.7 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
DEVON DR AINTREE LN GRANT ST DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 80.8 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
MADISON ST 94TH ST PROVENCAL DR MADISON STREET DUPAGE 80.8 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
DEVON CT DEVON DR NORTH END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 80.9 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
HEATHER CT LAKEWOOD CIR NORTH END LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 80.9 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2021 Resurface 1972
COVE CT HIDDEN LAKE DR NORTH END COUNTY LINE ESTATES DUPAGE 81.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1987
GREENBRIAR CT BRIARWOOD LN SOUTH END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 81.0 ASPH. 2018 Patching 2025 Resurface 1995
GARFIELD ST RUSTIC ACRES SOUTH END GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 81.1 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1970
PARK AVE 81ST ST KATHRYN CT BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 81.1 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1972
WESTMINSTER DR ROYAL DR WEST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 81.1 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
90TH ST VINE ST TURNBERRY DR TURNBERRY DUPAGE 81.2 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2021 Resurface 1990
WOODSIDE CT WOODSIDE LN WEST END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 81.2 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1988
63RD ST GARFIELD AVE GRANT ST 63RD STREET DUPAGE 81.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1956
CONWAY CT CLYNDERVEN RD LEONARD LN PARKVIEW DUPAGE 81.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1984
HAMPTON CT MANOR DR WEST END HEATHERFIELDS COOK 81.3 ASPH. 2002 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1988
DREW AVE 91ST ST SOUTH END ESTER SUBDIVISION DUPAGE 81.4 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  1956
77TH ST 7700 WOLF RD WOLF RD HERITAGE ESTATES COOK 81.5 ASPH. 2008 Reconstruct  2008
77TH ST FOREST HILL RD 7700 WOLF RD PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 81.5 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1956
87TH ST DOLFOR COVE HEATHER DR 87TH STREET DUPAGE 81.5 ASPH. 2009 Resurface  1956
SHAG BARK CT WOODSIDE LN WEST END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 81.6 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
KRAML DR ROANOKE CT 87TH ST KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 81.7 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
WALNUT CT SHAG BARK LN EAST END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 81.7 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
87TH ST TODOR CT DOLFOR COVE 87TH STREET DUPAGE 81.8 ASPH. 2009 Resurface  1989
ENCLAVE DR ENCLAVE CT ENCLAVE DR ENCLAVE DUPAGE 81.8 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1988
NORRIS DR MADISON ST EAST END NORRIS RESUBDIVISION DUPAGE 81.8 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1997
87TH ST HEATHER DR WEDGEWOOD DR 87TH STREET DUPAGE 81.9 ASPH. 2009 Resurface  1956
87TH ST WEDGEWOOD DR 15W181 87TH ST 87TH STREET DUPAGE 81.9 ASPH. 2011 Resurface  1956
WOODSIDE LN BRIARWOOD LN WOODSIDE CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 81.9 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
87TH ST AINTREE LN GRANT ST 87TH STREET DUPAGE 82.0 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1989
91ST ST GLENN DR MADISON ST 91ST STREET DUPAGE 82.0 ASPH. 2007 Widen/Resurf 2019 Cracksealing 1990
GREGFORD RD LAURIE LN WEST END WOODVIEW ESTATES SOUTH COOK 82.0 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
MADISON ST SHEPHARD LN 94TH ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 82.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
CAMELOT DR CHARLESTON DR CARLISLE CT CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 82.1 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
CANTEBERRY DR CAMELOT DR BRIARWOOD DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 82.1 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2025 Resurface 1978
87TH ST 15W181 87TH ST COUNTY LINE RD 87TH STREET DUPAGE 82.2 ASPH. 2011 Resurface  1956
91ST ST GARFIELD AVE OAK CREEK DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 82.5 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
GREGFORD RD TOMLIN DR LAURIE LN WOODVIEW ESTATES SOUTH COOK 82.5 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
PARKVIEW PL WALREDON AVE DOLFOR COVE PARKVIEW DUPAGE 82.6 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1984
SHAG BARK LN WHITE OAK CT BRIARWOOD LN BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 82.6 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
PARK AVE KATHRYN CT 83RD ST BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 82.7 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2021 Resurface 1972
SEDGLEY CT 60TH ST SOUTH END SEDGLEY ESTATES DUPAGE 82.7 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978
TOMLIN DR GREGFORD RD DOUGSHIRE CT BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 82.8 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2025 Resurface 1983
HILLCREST CT HILLCREST DR EAST END HILLCREST COOK 82.9 ASPH. 2009 Resurface  1991
LEONARD LN CONWAY CT DOLFOR COVE PARKVIEW DUPAGE 82.9 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1984
WOODCREEK CT WOODCREEK DR NORTH END WOODCREEK DUPAGE 83.0 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  1987
71ST ST 72ND ST EAST END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 83.3 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
81ST CT 81ST ST EAST END 81ST STREET DUPAGE 83.3 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  1956
91ST ST TURNBERRY DR GLENN DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 83.3 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
TURNBERRY CT TURNBERRY DR EAST END TURNBERRY DUPAGE 83.4 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  1990
WALREDON AVE PARKVIEW PL CONWAY CT PARKVIEW DUPAGE 83.4 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1984
74TH ST VINE ST NORMANDEE CT WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 83.5 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
81ST ST GARFIELD AVE PARK AVE BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 83.5 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
JOHNSTON RD HERITAGE DR 8804 JOHNSTON RD HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 83.6 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
LAURIE LN TOMLIN DR GREGFORD RD WOODVIEW ESTATES SOUTH COOK 83.6 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
GRANT ST DEVON DR SOUTH END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 83.7 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
WOODGATE DR COUNTY LINE RD WEST END WOODGATE DUPAGE 83.7 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  1973
GRANT ST GRANT CT WOODCREEK DR WOODCREEK DUPAGE 83.8 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 2001
75TH ST FOREST HILL RD WOLF RD PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 84.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
83RD ST LAKE RIDGE DR DOLFOR COVE 83RD STREET DUPAGE 84.0 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
91ST ST OAK CREEK DR ROYAL DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 84.0 ASPH. 2007 Widen/Resurf 2019 Cracksealing 1990
91ST ST ENCLAVE DR GARFIELD AVE 91ST STREET DUPAGE 84.0 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
WHITE OAK CT SHAG BARK LN EAST END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 84.0 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1988
CAMBRIDGE DR MADISON ST CHARLESTON DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 84.1 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2010 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1978

Village of Burr Ridge Page 3 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

KIRKWOOD COVE WALREDON AVE DOLFOR COVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 84.1 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
MANOR DR HAMPTON CT SOUTH END HEATHERFIELDS COOK 84.1 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1987
HIDDEN LAKE DR COVE CT WEST END COUNTY LINE ESTATES DUPAGE 84.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1987
WEDGEWOOD DR 87TH ST LAKEWOOD CIR LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 84.3 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1977
60TH ST SEDGLEY CT ELM ST IPPISCH SUBDIVISION DUPAGE 84.5 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1956
DOLFOR COVE KIRKWOOD COVE TAMERTON PKWY BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 84.5 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD 75TH ST 75TH ST SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 84.5 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1944
87TH ST POLO RIDGE CT AINTREE LN 87TH STREET DUPAGE 84.6 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1989
83RD ST GARFIELD AVE PARK AVE 83RD STREET DUPAGE 84.7 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
72ND ST 71ST ST WOLF RD PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 84.8 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
AINTREE LN 87TH ST DEVON DR DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 84.9 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1989
DOLFOR COVE TAMERTON PKWY BENNACOTT LN BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 85.0 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
91ST ST IL ROUTE 83 FALLINGWATER SUB 91ST STREET DUPAGE 85.1 ASPH. 2006 Widen/Resurf 2020 1990
ASHTON DR NORMAN CT END COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 85.1 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
JOHNSTON RD CASTLE CT CROWN CT HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 85.1 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD 75TH ST COUNTY LINE RD SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 85.1 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1944
WOODSIDE LN WOODSIDE CT SHAG BARK CT BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 85.1 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
WEDGEWOOD DR 87TH ST HANOVER CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 85.2 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
WOODGLEN LN RIDGEWOOD LN WOODLAND LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 85.2 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1981
DOLFOR COVE LEONARD LN NORTH END PARKVIEW DUPAGE 85.3 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1984
GARFIELD ST 91ST ST RUSTIC ACRES GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 85.4 ASPH. 2005 Constructed 2016 Cracksealing 2005
LAURIE LN SOUTH DR TOMLIN DR WOODVIEW ESTATES SOUTH COOK 85.4 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
90TH ST TURNBERRY DR GRANT ST TURNBERRY DUPAGE 85.5 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2021 Resurface 1990
TOMLIN DR GARYWOOD DR CREEK BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 85.5 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2019 Cracksealing 2025 Resurface 1979
WALREDON AVE KIRKWOOD COVE PARKVIEW PL BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 85.5 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
FIELDSTONE DR COUNTY LINE ROAD EAST END FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 85.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
MANOR DR BRIGHTON PL HAMPTON CT HEATHERFIELDS COOK 85.6 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1987
91ST ST FOREST EDGE LN ENCLAVE DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 85.8 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
91ST ST MAHONEY DR FOREST EDGE DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 85.8 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
BALMORAL CT JOHNSTON RD EAST END HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 85.8 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
BRIDGET CT FIELDSTONE DR NORTH END FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 85.8 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
WOODSIDE LN SHAG BARK CT SOUTH END BURR OAKS GLEN 3 & 4 COOK 86.2 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2025 Resurface 1989
WOODCREEK DR WOODCREEK CT GRANT ST WOODCREEK DUPAGE 86.3 ASPH. 2004 Resurface  1987
FIELDSTONE DR MALLORY CT BRIDGET CT FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 86.4 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
91ST ST COUNTY LINE RD DREW AVE 91ST STREET DUPAGE 86.5 ASPH. 2007 Widen/Resurf 2019 Cracksealing 2006
GIDDINGS AVE 74TH ST NORTH FRONTAGE RD BABSON PARK DUPAGE 86.5 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
WEDGEWOOD DR HANOVER CT SADDLE CT DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 86.6 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2011 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1982
DOLFOR COVE 87TH ST LEONARD LN PARKVIEW DUPAGE 86.7 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1984
DREW AVE 80TH ST 81ST CT DREW AVENUE DUPAGE 86.8 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
BRIGHTON PL MANOR DR WEST END HEATHERFIELDS COOK 86.9 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1988
91ST ST DEVON RIDGE DR TURNBERRY DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 87.1 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
ASHTON DR COUNTY LINE RD ASHTON DR CUL-DE-SAC COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 87.1 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
GLENMORA LN WEDGEWOOD DR SHENANDOAH LN DEVON WOODS DUPAGE 87.1 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
LAURIE LN 55TH ST LAURIE COURT WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 87.1 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
83RD ST DEER PATH TRL WINDSOR CT 83RD STREET DUPAGE 87.2 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 2006
DOLFOR COVE 83RD ST KIRKWOOD COVE BRAEMOOR, UNITS 1 & 2 DUPAGE 87.6 ASPH. 2008 Resurface 1972
ELM ST DARTMOUTH CT PLAINFIELD RD ELM STREET DUPAGE 87.7 ASPH. 2007 Resurface 2014 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 1956
JOHNSTON RD BALMORAL CT HERITAGE DR HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 87.7 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
CHESTNUT HILLS DR CHESTNUT HILLS CIR SOUTH END CHESTNUT HILLS DUPAGE 87.8 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1998
ROANOKE CT KRAML DR SOUTH END KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 87.8 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
WOODLAND CT WOODLAND LN WEST END BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 87.8 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1981
83RD ST FARS COVE COUNTY LINE RD 83RD STREET DUPAGE 87.9 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 2006
81ST ST GARFIELD AVE GARFIELD AVE BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 88.0 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1970
DOUGSHIRE CT TOMLIN DR WEST END BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 88.0 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1979
NORMAN CT ASHTON DR NORTH END COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 88.1 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
ASHTON DR ASHTON DR CUL-DE-SAC GLENMORA LN COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 88.2 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
GLENMORA LN SHENANDOAH LN ASHTON DR DEVON WOODS DUPAGE 88.3 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
TOWER DR SOUTH FRONTAGE RD EAST END BURR RIDGE PARK COOK 88.3 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1965
91ST ST DREW AVE MAHONEY DR 91ST STREET DUPAGE 88.6 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
ENCLAVE CT ENCLAVE DR EAST END ENCLAVE DUPAGE 88.6 ASPH. 2003 Resurface  2023 Resurface 1988
MALLORY CT FIELDSTONE DR NORTH END FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 88.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
GRANT ST 90TH ST NORTH END TURNBERRY DUPAGE 88.7 ASPH. 2007 Thin Lift  2021 Resurface 1956
HIDDEN LAKE DR COUNTY LINE RD COVE CT COUNTY LINE ESTATES DUPAGE 89.0 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1987
FIELDSTONE DR BRIDGET CT COUNTY LINE RD FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 89.2 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
KRAML DR 87TH ST BAY RUM CT KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 89.3 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
ROCKWELL CT GRANT ST EAST END BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL CMMNDUPAGE 89.4 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1978
FAIR ELMS AVE BRIDEWELL DR SOUTH END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 89.5 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
THURLOW DR TIMBER RIDGE DR EAST END MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 89.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
60TH ST ELM ST COUNTY LINE RD IPPISCH SUBDIVISION DUPAGE 89.8 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
JOHNSTON RD CREST CT CASTLE CT HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 89.9 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
KRAML DR SHILOH CT ROANOKE CT KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 90.1 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991

Village of Burr Ridge Page 4 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

MCCLINTOCK DR LINCOLNSHIRE DR BURR RIDGE PKWY BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 90.5 ASPH. 2005 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1987
FIELDSTONE DR WEST END GARFIELD AVE FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 90.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
VETERANS BLVD NORTH FRONTAGE RD VETERANS BLVD FAIR OAKS AT COUNTY LINE DUPAGE 90.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1994
ASHTON DR CUL-DE-SAC ASHTON DR SOUTH END COUNTY LINE CREEK ESTATESDUPAGE 90.7 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
LAURIE LN LAURIE CT SOUTH DR WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 90.8 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift  1970
TORI CT ROYAL DR EAST END DEVON OF BURR RIDGE DUPAGE 90.9 ASPH. 2001 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2024 Resurface 1982
VETERANS BLVD NORTH FRONTAGE RD CASE PROPERTY FAIR OAKS AT COUNTY LINE DUPAGE 90.9 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2004
LAKEWOOD CIR PARK AVE HEATHER DR LAKEWOOD CIRCLE DUPAGE 91.0 ASPH. 2002 Resurface 2005 Rejuvenate 2021 Resurface 1977
LINCOLNSHIRE DR BURR RIDGE PKWY MCCLINTOCK DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 91.0 ASPH. 2005 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1987
BRUSH HILL RD 75TH ST NORTH FRONTAGE RD BRUSH HILL TRUST DUPAGE 91.1 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1993
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD 83RD ST SHORE DR SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 91.1 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1944
KRAML DR MADISON ST SHILOH CT KRAML ESTATES DUPAGE 91.3 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2015 Cracksealing 1991
80TH ST MADISON ST EAST END 80TH STREET DUPAGE 91.4 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
TIMBER RIDGE DR PRAIRIE RIDGE CT SOUTH END MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 91.5 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
PRAIRIE RIDGE CT TIMBER RIDGE DR WEST END MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 91.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
TIMBER RIDGE DR NORTH END LAKEVIEW LN MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 91.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
CHESTNUT HILLS DR HARVESTER DR CHESTNUT HILLS CIR CHESTNUT HILLS DUPAGE 91.7 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1998
CHESTNUT HILLS DR CHESTNUT HILLS CIR CHESTNUT HILLS CIR CHESTNUT HILLS DUPAGE 91.7 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1998
NORTH FRONTAGE RD HARVESTER DR ELM ST NORTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 91.7 ASPH. 2004 Reconstruct 2017 Cracksealing 1963
NORTH FRONTAGE RD COOLING POND HARVESTER DR NORTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 91.7 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1963
MADISON ST CAMBRIDGE DR KRAML DR MADISON STREET DUPAGE 91.8 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
FIELDSTONE DR GARFIELD AVE MALLORY CT FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 92.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1993
OAK WERTH LN COUNTY LINE RD EAST END OAK WERTH COOK 92.0 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1994
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD GRANT ST 75TH ST SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 92.1 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing  1944
LAURIE CT LAURIE LN NORTH END WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 92.2 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift   1970
WOODVIEW RD TARTAN RIDGE TH 1040 WOODVIEW WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 92.3 ASPH. 2005 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing  1970
WOODVIEW RD 1040 WOODVIEW SOUTH DR WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 92.3 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1970
83RD ST KATHRYN CT DEER PATH TRL 83RD STREET DUPAGE 92.4 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing  2006
83RD ST PARK AVE KATHRYN CT 83RD STREET DUPAGE 92.4 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing  2006
WILDWOOD LN KELLER DR SOUTH END WILDWOOD DUPAGE 92.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing  1992
WINDSOR CT 83RD ST NORTH END BRAEMOOR ESTATES DUPAGE 92.5 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1970
JACK PINE LN 80TH ST NORTH END JACK PINE DUPAGE 92.7 ASPH. 1997 Resurface  1977
NORTH FRONTAGE RD VETERANS BLVD COOLING POND NORTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 92.7 ASPH. 2004 Reconstruct 2017 Cracksealing 1994
83RD ST WINDSOR CT FARS COVE 83RD STREET DUPAGE 92.8 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing  2006
CARRIAGE WAY DR COUNTY LINE LN OLD MILL LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 92.8 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
HEATHROW CT GRANT ST EAST END BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL CMMNDUPAGE 92.8 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1978
MADISON ST 87TH ST TRI-STATE FPD MADISON STREET DUPAGE 92.8 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
MEADOWBROOK DR SOUTH FRONTAGE RD VILLAGE LIMITS MEADOWBROOK DUPAGE 92.8 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
83RD ST DOLFOR COVE RIDGEPOINTE DR 83RD STREET DUPAGE 93.1 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
JOHNSTON RD 87TH ST BALMORAL CT HIGHLAND FIELDS COOK 93.2 ASPH. 2001 Constructed 2010 Cracksealing 2023 Resurface 2001
SHENANDOAH CT SHENANDOAH LN EAST END DEVON WOODS DUPAGE 93.2 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
COMMERCE ST HIGH GROVE BLVD INTERNATIONAL ST HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 93.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1993
HIGH GROVE BLVD MADISON ST COMMERCE ST HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 93.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1993
GARFIELD AVE 73RD ST 74TH ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 94.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD MEADOWBROOK DR 83RD ST SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 94.0 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1944
TIMBER RIDGE DR LAKEVIEW LN PRAIRIE RIDGE CT MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 94.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
MANOR DR ST. JAMES CT BRIGHTON PL HEATHERFIELDS COOK 94.1 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1987
83RD ST RIDGEPOINTE DR GARFIELD AVE 83RD STREET DUPAGE 94.2 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2019 Cracksealing 2006
GRANT ST 59TH ST GRANT CT WOODCREEK DUPAGE 94.2 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 2024 Resurface 2001
MADISON ST 83RD ST CAMBRIDGE DR MADISON STREET DUPAGE 94.3 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
RIDGEWOOD LN WOODGLEN LN WOODLAND LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 94.4 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1981
CLUBSIDE CT MADISON ST EAST END RUTH LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 94.5 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1996
INTERNATIONAL ST HIGH GROVE BLVD COMMERCE ST HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 94.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1993
80TH ST JACK PINES LN COUNTY LINE RD 80TH STREET DUPAGE 94.6 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
83RD ST MADISON ST WATERVIEW CT 83RD STREET DUPAGE 94.6 ASPH. 2006 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 2006
MADISON ST KRAML DR 87TH ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 94.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
VETERANS BLVD COUNTY LINE RD NORTH FRONTAGE RD FAIR OAKS AT COUNTY LINE DUPAGE 94.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1994
GRANT ST ROCKWELL CT 79TH ST BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL CMMNDUPAGE 94.8 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1978
MANOR DR PLAINFIELD RD ST. JAMES CT HEATHERFIELDS COOK 94.8 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1987
CHASEMOOR DR NORTHGATE PL HUNTINGTON CT CHASEMOOR COOK 95.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
COMMONWEALTH AVE BRIDEWELL DR SOUTH END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 95.0 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
GARFIELD AVE 60TH ST 60TH PL GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 95.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
POST RD STIRRUP LN CARRIAGE WAY DR CARRIAGE WAY COOK 95.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
WILDWOOD LN GRANT ST KELLER DR WILDWOOD DUPAGE 95.0 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1992
80TH ST DREW AVE JACK PINES LN 80TH STREET DUPAGE 95.1 ASPH. 2003 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
SOUTH FRONTAGE RD SHORE DR MADISON ST SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD DUPAGE 95.1 ASPH. 2001 Reconstruct 2010 Cracksealing 1944
FARS COVE 83RD ST SOUTH END FARS COVE DUPAGE 95.2 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  1993
79TH ST DREW AVE COUNTY LINE RD 79TH STREET DUPAGE 95.4 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
75TH ST BRUSH HILL RD VILLAGE LIMITS BRUSH HILL TRUST DUPAGE 95.5 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1995
COMMERCE ST INTERNATIONAL ST EAST END HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 95.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1993
HIGH GROVE BLVD INTERNATIONAL ST PLAINFIELD RD HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 95.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1993

Village of Burr Ridge Page 5 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

87TH ST POLO RIDGE CT MADISON ST 87TH STREET DUPAGE 95.6 ASPH. 2009 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
ANDREW CT MADISON ST EAST END RUTH LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 95.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1996
BURR OAK LN RIDGEWOOD LN WOODLAND LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 95.6 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980
ELM ST 73RD ST NORTH FRONTAGE RD BABSON PARK DUPAGE 95.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
MADISON ST 81ST ST 82ND ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 95.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1979
MADISON ST 82ND ST 83RD ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 95.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1979
CARRIAGE PL COUNTY LINE RD COUNTY LINE LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 96.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
DREW AVE 79TH ST 80TH ST DREW AVENUE DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
GARFIELD AVE 59TH ST 60TH ST GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
GRANT ST HEATHROW CT ROCKWELL CT BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL CMMNDUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1978
LAKEVIEW LN MADISON ST TIMBER RIDGE DR MADISON CLUB DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 2000
PARK AVE 72ND ST 73RD ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
SHENANDOAH LN GLENMORA LN SHENANDOAH CT DEVON WOODS DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2006 Thin Lift 2011 Cracksealing 1990
SOPER RD MADISON ST 75TH ST WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 96.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
STIRRUP PL STIRRUP LN END CARRIAGE WAY COOK 96.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
WOODVIEW RD 55TH ST TARTAN RIDGE TH WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 96.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1970
ST. JAMES CT MANOR DR NORTH END HEATHERFIELDS COOK 96.1 ASPH. 2005 Resurface  2025 Resurface 1987
74TH ST GARFIELD AVE GIDDINGS AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 96.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
75TH ST BRUSH HILL RD EAST END WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 96.3 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
CENTRAL AVE BRIDEWELL DR SOUTH END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 96.3 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1956
93RD PL JACKSON ST EAST END OAK HILLS DUPAGE 96.5 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
CHASEMOOR DR HUNTINGTON CT EASTON PL CHASEMOOR COOK 96.5 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
COUNTY LINE LN CARRIAGE WAY DR SURREY LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 96.5 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
MADISON ST SOUTH FRONTAGE RD NORTH FRONTAGE RD MADISON STREET DUPAGE 96.5 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1987
RIDGEWOOD LN BURR OAK LN WOODGLEN LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 96.5 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1981
GARFIELD AVE 62ND ST 63RD ST GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 96.7 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
72ND ST GIDDINGS AVE PARK AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 97.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
MADISON ST 79TH ST SOUTH FRONTAGE RD MADISON STREET DUPAGE 97.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1987
TOMLIN DR DOUGSHIRE CT CREEK BURR RIDGE MEADOWS COOK 97.0 ASPH. 2016 Patch 2019 Cracksealing 1983
WOODLAND LN WOODLAND CT WOODGLEN LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 97.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980
CHASEMOOR DR TRENT CT NORTHGATE PL CHASEMOOR COOK 97.1 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
MADISON ST 79TH ST 80TH ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 97.1 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1979
JACKSON ST 95TH PL 94TH PL OAK HILLS DUPAGE 97.5 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
KELLER DR WILDWOOD LN NORTH END WILDWOOD DUPAGE 97.5 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1992
OAK HILL CT 94TH ST NORTH END OAK HILLS DUPAGE 97.5 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
STIRRUP LN POST RD STIRRUP PL CARRIAGE WAY COOK 97.5 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
STIRRUP LN STIRRUP PL SURREY LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 97.5 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
74TH ST MADISON ST VINE ST WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 97.6 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
CHASEMOOR DR EASTON PL FOXBOROUGH PL CHASEMOOR COOK 97.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
GIDDINGS AVE 72ND ST 73RD ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 97.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
MADISON ST TRI-STATE FPD 89TH ST STAFFORD DUPAGE 97.6 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
VINE ST MID BLOCK 75TH ST WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 97.6 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
72ND ST GARFIELD AVE GIDDINGS AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
72ND ST PARK AVE HAMILTON AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
BURR OAK LN WOODLAND LN FOREST HILL RD BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980
BURR OAK LN 79TH ST RIDGEWOOD LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980
CARRIAGE WAY DR OLD MILL LN STIRRUP LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
CARRIAGE WAY DR STIRRUP LN POST RD CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
COUNTY LINE LN CARRIAGE PL POST RD CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
COUNTY LINE LN SURREY LN CARRIAGE PL CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
GARFIELD AVE 72ND ST 73RD ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
GARFIELD AVE 60TH PL RIDGE FARM RD GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
GIDDINGS AVE 73RD ST 74TH ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
GRANT ST SOUTH FRONTAGE RD HEATHROW CT BURR RIDGE INDUSTRIAL CMMNDUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2012 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1978
PARK AVE 74TH ST NORTH FRONTAGE RD BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
POLO RIDGE CT 87TH ST SOUTH END POLO RIDGE DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1996
POST RD COUNTY LINE LN STIRRUP LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
RIDGEWOOD LN WOODLAND LN FOREST HILL RD BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1981
SURREY LN COUNTY LINE LN STIRRUP LN CARRIAGE WAY COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
VINE ST 74TH ST MID BLOCK WEST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1956
WOODLAND LN RIDGEWOOD LN WOODLAND CT BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 98.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980
79TH ST DREW AVE DREW AVE 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST HAMILTON AVE HAMILTON AVE 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST LAKE RIDGE CLUB DR GRANT ST 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST GRANT ST GARFIELD AVE 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST HAMILTON AVE DREW AVE 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST GARFIELD AVE HAMILTON AVE 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
79TH ST MADISON ST LAKE RIDGE CLUB DR 79TH STREET DUPAGE 98.2 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 1999
GLENN DR 91ST ST SHEPHARD LN SPACE VALLEY DUPAGE 98.3 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1982
94TH ST JACKSON ST OAK HILL CT OAK HILLS DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
CHASEMOOR DR FOXBOROUGH PL STONEHENGE CT CHASEMOOR COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990

Village of Burr Ridge Page 6 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

CHASEMOOR DR WATERSIDE PL TRENT CT CHASEMOOR COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
CHASEMOOR DR NORTHGATE PL WATERSIDE PL CHASEMOOR COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
CHASEMOOR DR LINCOLNSHIRE DR NORTHGATE PL CHASEMOOR COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
CHASEMOOR DR STONEHENGE CT SOUTHGATE CT CHASEMOOR COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
COVE CREEK CT 62ND ST SOUTH END COVE CREEK DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface  1989
ELM ST 72ND ST 73RD ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
GREYSTONE CT GERMAN CHURCH RD NORTH END BRIDLE PATH COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1999
HAMILTON AVE 72ND ST 73RD ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
JACKSON ST 94TH PL 94TH ST OAK HILLS DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
JACKSON ST 94TH ST 93RD PL OAK HILLS DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
MADISON ST 80TH ST 81ST ST MADISON STREET DUPAGE 98.6 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 1979
SOUTH DR LAURIE LN WOODVIEW RD WOODVIEW ESTATES COOK 98.6 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1970
59TH ST GRANT ST GARFIELD AVE 59TH STREET DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface  1956
61ST PL GARFIELD AVE PARK AVE 61ST PLACE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface  1988
62ND ST COVE CREEK CT EAST END 62ND STREET DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface  2001
62ND ST GARFIELD AVE COVE CREEK CT 62ND STREET DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface  2006
72ND ST HAMILTON AVE ELM ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
72ND ST CENTRAL AVE 71ST ST PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2011 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
73RD PL FOREST HILL RD WEST END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
73RD PL WOLF RD FOREST HILL RD PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
73RD ST GARFIELD AVE GIDDINGS AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
73RD ST HAMILTON AVE ELM ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
73RD ST PARK AVE HAMILTON AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
73RD ST GIDDINGS AVE PARK AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
74TH ST GIDDINGS AVE PARK AVE BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
74TH ST NORMANDEE CT EAST END WEST BABSON PARK INCORP. DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
75TH ST FOREST HILL RD ARBOR AVE PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1980
81ST ST LAKE RIDGE DR RIDGEPOINTE DR LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1981
81ST ST MADISON ST LAKE RIDGE DR LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1956
94TH PL JACKSON ST EAST END OAK HILLS DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
94TH ST GLENN DR EAST END SPACE VALLEY DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1982
94TH ST MADISON ST GLENN DR SPACE VALLEY DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1982
95TH PL PALISADES RD EAST END OAK HILLS DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
95TH PL JACKSON ST PALISADES RD OAK HILLS DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
ARBOR AVE 75TH ST WEST END PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
BRIARWOOD DR CLYNDERVEN RD CANTEBERRY DR CAMBRIDGE ESTATES DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1978
BUCK TRAIL DR 79TH ST SOUTH END DEERVIEW COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1991
BURR RIDGE PKWY BRIDEWELL DR LINCOLNSHIRE DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1987
BURR RIDGE PKWY COUNTY LINE RD BRIDEWELL DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1987
BURR RIDGE PKWY LINCOLNSHIRE DR MCCLINTOCK DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1987
BURR RIDGE PKWY MCCLINTOCK DR BRIDEWELL DR BURR RIDGE PARK 1-3 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1987
CHASEMOOR DR SOUTHGATE CT 79TH ST CHASEMOOR COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1990
CIRCLE DR FOREST HILL RD DANA WAY ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTAT COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
CIRCLE DR DANA WAY 79TH ST ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTAT COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
CIRCLE RIDGE CT CIRCLE RIDGE DR NORTH END DEVON RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1988
CIRCLE RIDGE DR DEVON RIDGE DR CIRCLE RIDGE CT DEVON RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1988
CIRCLE RIDGE DR CIRCLE RIDGE CT DEVON RIDGE DR DEVON RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1988
COUNTRYSIDE CT GARFIELD AVE EAST END SKINNER'S SUBDIVISION DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
DANA WAY CIRCLE DR 79TH ST ALLINSON'S HIGH VIEW ESTAT COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1956
DEER PATH TRL FAWN CT COUNTY LINE RD DEER PATH DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1981
DEER PATH TRL 83RD ST FAWN CT DEER PATH DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1981
DEERVIEW CT 79TH ST SOUTH END DEERVIEW COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1991
DEVON RIDGE CT CIRCLE RIDGE DR SOUTH END DEVON RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1988
DEVON RIDGE DR 91ST ST CIRCLE RIDGE DR DEVON RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface 1988
ELM CT ELM ST WEST END PROVENCE PLACE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface  2001
ERIN LN GARYWOOD DR WEST END LONGFIELD HILL COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface   1987
FAWN CT DEER PATH TRL NORTH END DEER PATH DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1981
FIELDSTONE CT FIELDSTONE DR END FIELDSTONE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2014 Resurface 2017 Cracksealing 1996
FOREST HILL RD 75TH ST RIDGEWOOD LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1979
FOREST HILL RD RIDGEWOOD LN BURR OAK LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1979
FOREST HILL RD 73RD PL 74TH ST PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1979
FOREST HILL RD 74TH ST 75TH ST PLEASANTDALE NORTH COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1979
GARFIELD AVE RIDGE FARM RD 61ST PL GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
GARFIELD AVE 61ST PL 62ND ST GARFIELD ST DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1956
GLENN DR SHEPHARD LN 94TH ST SPACE VALLEY DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1982
HAMILTON AVE 73RD ST NORTH FRONTAGE RD BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
HIGH GROVE BLVD COMMERCE ST INTERNATIONAL ST HIGH GROVE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2015 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1993
JACKSON ST 93RD PL IL ROUTE 83 OAK HILLS DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
JOHNSTON RD 8804 JOHNSTON RD SOUTH END HIGHLAND FIELDS 3B COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Constructed 2018
LAKE RIDGE CT LAKE RIDGE DR END LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface  1981
LAKE RIDGE DR 83RD ST LAKE RIDGE CT LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface  1981

Village of Burr Ridge Page 7 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



Sorted by PCR

ROADWAY FROM TO
SUBDIVISION OR STREET 

GROUP
COUNTY PCR 2019 PVT TYPE

RECENT 
REHAB YEAR

RECENT 
REHAB TYPE

PREVENT 
MAINT YEAR

PREVENT MAINT 
TYPE

PROJ REHAB 
YEAR

PROJECTED 
REHAB TYPE

YEAR 
CONSTR'D

LAKE RIDGE DR LAKE RIDGE CT 81ST ST LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface  1981
PALISADES RD 95TH PL SOUTH END OAK HILLS DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2016 Resurface 2019 Cracksealing 1950
PARK AVE 73RD ST 74TH ST BABSON PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1956
PARK AVE 61ST PL NORTH END BRADLEY ESTATES DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface  1990
PEPPER MILL CT ELM ST WEST END PEPPER MILL COURT DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface  1981
RIDGE FARM RD GARFIELD AVE SOUTHWEST END RIDGE FARM DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface  1990
RIDGEPOINTE DR 83RD ST 81ST ST LAKE RIDGE DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2020 Resurface  1981
SHEPHARD LN MADISON ST GLENN DR SPACE VALLEY DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1982
SHORE CT SHORE DR WEST END HINSDALE INDUSTRIAL PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1970
SHORE DR 83RD ST SHORE CT HINSDALE INDUSTRIAL PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1970
SHORE DR SHORE CT SOUTH FRONTAGE RD HINSDALE INDUSTRIAL PARK DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2018 Resurface 1970
STEEPLESIDE DR GERMAN CHURCH RD NORTH END STEEPLESIDE COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2017 Resurface 2020 Cracksealing 1990
STIRRUP LN SURREY LN CARRIAGE WAY DR CARRIAGE WAY COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2013 Resurface 2016 Cracksealing 2000
TODOR CT 87TH ST END TODOR MANOR DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface 1988
VINE ST 90TH ST NORTH END VINE STREET DUPAGE 99.0 ASPH. 2019 Resurface
WOODLAND LN WOODGLEN LN BURR OAK LN BURR OAKS GLEN 1 & 2 COOK 99.0 ASPH. 2010 Resurface 2018 Cracksealing 1980

Village of Burr Ridge Page 8 of 8  2019 Street Survey Report 



VILLAGE OF

y'^iif^;

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE
7660 County Line Rd. - Burr Ridge, IL 60527

(630) 654-8181- Fax (630) 654-8269 - www.burr-ridge.gov

Gary Grasso
Mayor

Sue Schaus
Village Clerk

Evan Walter
Village Administrator

December 22,2020

Mayor Gary Grasso and Board of Tmstees
7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: Z-14-2020: 7508 CountyJLme Road (Guidepost LLC); Special Uses, Variation, and
Findinss of Fact

Dear Mayor and Board ofTmstees:

The Plan Commission transmits its recommendation to approve a request by Guidepost A,

LLC. The petitioner requests the following approvals as per the Burr Ridge Zoning
Ordinance: a special use as per Section VII.C for site, architectural, and landscape plan
approval for a building addition; a special use as per Section VII.C for a "Day Care Center";

and a variation from Section XI.B.ll.a(2)(c) to permit a reduction of the required 8 foot

side yard landscaping area.

After due notice, as required by law, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on
November 16, 2020, December 7, 2020, and December 21, 2020. The petitioner seeks

approval to use the property at 7508 County Line Road for a Montessori School. The property
is currently developed and occupied as a funeral home. Planned improvements include a

2,626 square foot building addition to the existing 4,512 square foot building, an outdoor play
area, and reconfigured parking, access and landscaping.

The petitioner originally filed this request with a larger addition and several other variations
including a request to exceed the maximum permitted floor area ratio. After two meetings

with the Plan Commission, the petitioner reduced the size of the building addition, added
perimeter landscaping in the front, sides, and rear yard, and was able to reduce the number of

variations to the reduction in the depth of the side landscaping yards.

The Plan Commission was concerned about the land use and in particular, the outdoor play

area. The petitioner was able to address this concern with solid fence enclosure for the outdoor

play area and solid perimeter landscaping on both sides of the property. The petitioner also

agreed to enhance the rear yard by creating a drainage swale and adding fencing and
landscaping. The petitioner also volunteered to remove the front yard turnaround, add a public

sidewalk and provide for underground stormwater storage.

In regards to the variation, the Commission determined that the property was unique in that it
was smaller than the required minimum lot size and it was developed before there was any
required side yard landscaping. The Commission determined that these conditions created a

hardship relative to full compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.

Three neighbors spoke at the public hearings. The neighbors expressed concerns about

stormwater management, rear yard landscaping, and parking. Their comments are included

8B



Mayor Gary Grasso and Board ofTmstees

December 22, 2020

in the minutes from these meetings.

Based on the above considerations and the submitted findings of fact, the Plan Commission,

by a vote of 7 to 0, recommends that the Board of Trustees approve this petition subject to
the following conditions:

1. Prior to issuance of a permit for the building addition, the petitioner shall submit final
site engineering plans and landscaping plans consistent with the submitted preliminary
plan which shall include the following:

a. A solid row of evergreen bushes shall be planted and maintained within the 3 foot

side yard buffer area. The bushes shall be a minimum of 4 feet tall at the time of
planting.

b. Rear yard landscaping, drainage and fencing shall be provided as per the attached

plan and subject to the approval of the Village Engineer.

c. Dead, dying or diseased plant materials shall be replaced in a reasonable time and

as needed but in all cases shall be replaced within one year.

d. Underground stonnwater storage shall be provided as per the submitted

recommendation of the Village Engineer with final plans subject to the approval
by the Village Engineer.

e. A public sidewalk shall be constructed in the adjacent right of way subject to the
approval of the Village Engineer.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals



 

Findings of Fact – Special Use 

Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance 

 

Address:  7508 County Line Road 

_ ___________________________ 

As per Section XII.K.7 of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance, for a special use to be 
approved, the petitioner must confirm all of the following findings by providing facts supporting 
each finding. 
 
a. The use meets a public necessity or otherwise provides a service or opportunity that is not 
otherwise available within the Village and is of benefit to the Village and its residents. 
 
Petitioner will operate a school that meets a public necessity by offering a Montessori 
education emphasizing project-based learning and social-emotional learning to toddlers 
and children, ages 3 to 6 years old.   
 
b. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 
 
The operation of the school by Petitioner will benefit and preserve the public health, safety, 
morals, comfort, or general welfare by offering educational programming that has proven 
beneficial to the healthy development of young children.  The use is valuable to families 
residing in the Village with young children that seek a Montessori based education and is 
not harmful to the public in any way. 
 
c. The special use will not be injurious to the uses and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood in which it is to be located. 
 
The proposed use will not be injurious to the uses and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity nor substantially diminish or impair property values.  The school will 
only operate from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and will not generate excessive noise, traffic or 
similar undesirable effects.   
 
d. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
 
The proposed use will not impact any other parcels. 
 
e. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/ or necessary facilities have been or will be 
provided. 
 
Existing drainage is in place and adequate utilities and necessary facilities will be provided. 
 
f. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 



The property includes a private parking lot. Pick-up and drop-off of students will be fully 
contained on the property without impeding traffic on S. County Line Road and proceed in 
one direction with separate ingress and egress. Staff will monitor traffic and escort students 
to waiting vehicles.  
 
g. The proposed special use is not contrary to the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan 
of the Village of Burr Ridge as amended. 
 
Correct. The proposed use meets the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan by 
offering services that benefit the community and enhancing the quality of life of residents 
of the Village. 
 
h. The special use shall, in other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission or, if applicable, the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

Correct. 



 

Findings of Fact - Zoning Variation 

Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance 

 

Address:  7508 County Line Road 

 

 

a. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the 
specific property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from 
a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were to be carried out. 

Correct. Petitioner seeks variations to reduce the 8-foot side yard landscaping and for an 
outdoor play area.  The variation for the side yard landscaping setback is necessary for the 
re-development of this parcel which is smaller in area and width than a typical lot in this 
zoning district.  In order for the school to safely accommodate its prospective students while 
minimizing impact to the surrounding community, it is necessary to reduce the side yard 
landscaping setback.   

In regards to the outdoor play area, the T-1 District allows schools as a permitted use and 
allows day care centers as a special use.  An outdoor play area is an expected part of a school 
or child care center.  It would be a hardship not to allow an outdoor play area for a school 
or day care center.   

b. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under 
the conditions allowed by the regulations governing the zoning district in which it is located. 

Correct.  Because the property is smaller in area and width than is otherwise required by 
the T-1 District, redevelopment of the property for the permitted use as a school or for the 
special use as a day care center, strict compliance with the zoning standards precludes 
reasonable use of the property.  Petitioner has factored in the proposed size of the school 
building which is necessary to achieve a reasonable rate of return. 

c. The conditions upon which an application for a variation is based are unique to the property 
for which the variance is sought, and are not applicable, generally, to other property within the 
same zoning classification. 

Correct.  Those conditions being the size of the lot in regards to lot area and lot width and 
relative to typical lot sizes in the T-1 District. 

d. The purpose of the variation is not based primarily upon a desire to increase financial gain. 

 Correct.  The primary purpose of the variation is to create a safe and productive 
environment for the prospective students of the school. 

e. The alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by this Ordinance and has not been created by 
any persons presently having an interest in the property. 

 Correct.  Petitioner and the property owners have played no role or created the hardships 
caused by the Ordinance. 



f. The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located. 

Correct. The variations sought will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located. 

g. The granting of the variation will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood or 
locality. 

Correct.  The variations will not have any noticeable impact upon the essential character of 
the neighborhood. 

h. The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
property or substantially increase the congestion of the public streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or impair natural drainage or create drainage problems on adjacent properties, or endanger the 
public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. 

Correct. The variations will not impact the supply of light and air to adjacent property. The 
property includes a private parking lot exceeding the minimum parking requirement. Pick-
up and drop-off of students will be fully contained on the property without impeding traffic 
on S. County Line Road and proceed in one direction with separate ingress and egress. Staff 
will monitor traffic and escort students to waiting vehicles. Petitioner will improve existing 
drainage and stormwater storage following the direction and recommendations of the 
Village Engineer and adequate utilities and necessary facilities will be provided. 
 

i. The proposed variation is consistent with the official Comprehensive Plan of the Village 
of Burr Ridge and other development codes of the Village. 

Correct. The proposed use meets the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan by 
offering services that benefit the community and enhancing the quality of life of residents of 
the Village 



7508 S County Line Road

Drop Off and Pick Up Plan

Student Counts:

14 Young Toddlers (approximately 15 to 23 months)

14 Toddlers (approximately 2 years to 3 years}

96 Children's House (approximately 3-6 year)

Approximate Staff Count: 12

Drop-Off Times

1. Staff will arrive and depart the school outside of student drop off and pick up times.

2. Open to all drop off time from 7:OOAM-8:OOAM,

3. 28 Young Toddlers and Toddlers will arrive between 8:OOAM - 8:15AM.

4. 48 Children's House students (classrooms 1 and 2) will arrive between 8:15AM and 8:30AM.

5. 48 Children's House students (classrooms 3 and 4) will arrive between 8:30A[V1 and 8;45AM.

Pick-Up Times

1. Staff will depart outside of the student pick times,

2, Young Toddlers, and Toddlers will depart between 2:30PM and 6:OOPM as convenient for parents.

3, Children's House students will depart between 3:OOPM -6:OOPM as convenient for parents.

Key notes

1. Approximately 40% of students on average across 76 schools are siblings which.

2. Parent drop off and pick up times are allowed as a range of time as convenient for parents, We do not

experience a 'rush' right before class instruction times start because we are not a traditional school,

Before and after care are offered at no additional cost to our families, and we do not bring kids from off

campus for after school care.

3. With are child valet system we can off-load 6 cars every minute, or 90 cars every 15 minutes/ which is

more than double the capacity required to prevent congestion leading to stacking on to County Line Road.

4. Assuming our national average of 18% siblings and 25% before care, we will actually only have

approximately 17.22 cars arriving between 8:00 - 8:15, approximately 29.52 cars would arrive between

8:15 - 8:30, and 29.52 cars would arrive between 8;30 - 8:45.

Guidepost IVIontessori

A subsidiary of

Higher Ground Education

l"!:ilj'1il:'! (^..^•"l-i



From: David Preissig <dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 8/ 2020 6:04 PM

To: Douglas Pollock <DPOLLOCK@BURR-RIDGE.GOV>
Subject: RE: 7508 County Line Rd

Doug/

It's very flat through this parking lot but stormwater runoff generally drains to the south. From the west

end of the existing building/stormwater flows along the south lot line in a shallow swale to the ditch on

South Frontage Road (which outfall location must be maintained for this drainage sub-area).

Proposed curb along the perimeter of the parking lot would result in storm sewer pipes beneath the

south curbline, would could also collect building downspouts and sump pump(s). Again/ stormwater

from the existing building and front 1/2 of this lot must be directed to the ditch along the South
Frontage Road, Stormwater directed to the rear of the lot should be attenuated/ which could be

provided in a minor/ underground detention system. This could include slightly-oversized storm sewer

pipes ending with a restrictor installed in the outflow manhole structure. A drywell is also

recommended, per the attached drawing, as was provided at SRALab. Please note that the front of the

lot has a depressional storage area that should be checked if it serves an existing stormwater detention

system.

Thanks,

Dave



Variable
(Sss Note 3)

TYPE 1 FRAME, 9" (SEE NOTE 4)

FLAT SLAB TOP (SEE NOTE 1}

Variable
(See Note 3)

7" Min, 7" Min.

6 FT or Variable Perforated Circular

3G% MIN. VOID STONE FILLED SPACE

OPEN GRAVEL BOTTOM

^^IS^I^-

.'i*-*i*£*i'i*:'-*-'-f-9if.f ,.9^9:9.9.9.9.9.9.f.9.9^.9.9:9.9:
S*:*:*.:*£»^.:f;fi*;lt-f:9Mi9.Vf;9:Vf:V*;9.f:9.*:9:ll.f^f.
-•- f-t-W- •-*-*£*-*-*-*- •.:»;•.:•;•- W 9-f-f-»-*- f- '-W-
:*Wi*;*.fW.*.~f.f;fff£f.»ff.f.~V9.f^.~f.*ff.»£f.f.f.f^.

-f-*-f.-?-*-f'?-f-?-f-f-f-f-f-f-f^.^^^
•- •; *. *: *i *: •• *: •• *: *. *: •; •-- •- •; *- *-- •- *-- •; •-- •- •-- *- *- »; *; *--1

RECOMMENDED VOLUME CONTROL BMP
DRYWELL STRUCTURE FOR

VOLUME CONTROL >= 500 CF

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PRECAST STRUCTURE WITH PERFORATION HOLES AND
NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC WRAPPED AROUND THE SIDES OF THE STRUCTURE

CA-7 AGGREGATE OR 3" ROCK, OPEN GRADED
WITH A MIN 3G % VOID STONE FILLED SPACE

SOD, SEED AND BLANKET OR OTHER
VESETATIVE COVER WITH 4" TOPSOIL

Project Name

VOLUME CONTROL BMP
DRYWELL STRUCTURE

General Notes

1. FOR INFORMATION ON
THE FLAT TOP, STEPS OR
MATERIALS, SEE VILLAGE
MANHOLE DETAIL.

2. DEPTH SPECIFIED BASED
ON REQUIRED STORAGE,

3. AGGREGATE FILLED
AREA BASED ON
REQUIRED STORAGE.

4. FILTER FABRIC TO BE
INSTALLED UNDER LID
UNTIL VEGETATIVE
COVER FULLY
ESTABLISHED.

5. PIPES SHALL BE
PERFORATED PVC SDR 26
IN OPEN GRADED STONE
AND FABRIC LINED SOCK.
INVERT ELEVATIONS
SHALL BE 1/10 FOOT
DIFFERENCE.

6. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH
DUPAGE COUNTY
REQUIREMENTS
INCLUDING ARTICLE 8,
SECTION 15-64. VOLUME
CALCULATIONS SHALL BE
SUPPLIED WITH THIS
DETAIL.

7. BMP DEVICE TO BE
OWNED AND MAINTAINED
BY THE PROPERTY
OWNER AND LOCATED
OUTSIDE OF THE R.O.W.

N.T.S.

Date
11-28-2012

Address

Village of Burr Ridge
Engineering Department

451 Commerce St.

Burr Ridge, IL 60527



316'-0"

NEW 1-STORY
EXPANSION

2,626 SF

',/ ,i.i/,/ .-^/^2^.j// ^i/^ ^T//\

FAR (FLOOR AREA RATIO) CALCULATION GROSS MOTOR AREA CALCULATION

EXISTING BUILDING:
PROPOSED ADDITION:
TOTAL:

TOTAL CHILDREN
YTD|TD
CH

122@75SF/CHILD:
@ 33% CAPACiTf:

AREA PROVIDED:
BACK PLAY AREA 3.006 SF
INDOOR PLAY AREA 1,175 SF
TOTAL: 4.195SF

STORMWATER DRAINAGE;

UNDERGROUND STORMWATER STORAGE
TO BE PROVIDED AS RECOMMENDED BY
THE VILLAGE ENGINEER

KEYED NOTES: SYMBOL

SATELLITE IMAGE

PARKING CALCULATION

# STAFF
#FTE
TOTAL SPACES REQUIRED
TOTAL SPACES PROVIDED
PROJECTED CAR POOL TOTAL

12
2

RATIO
1:1
1:1

SPACES
REQUIRED

12
2
14
18
22

SCOPE OF WORK:
CONVERT PREVIOUS MORTUARY FACILIP^ INTO A MONTESSORI SCHOOL FOR
PRE-SCHOOL AGE CHILDREN.
E)CTERIOR:
• EXPAND BUILDING SIZE
• USE MATERIALS & METHODS TO MATCH EXISTING BUILDING.
• REFRESH PAINT ON EXISTING NON-BRICK SURFACES AND TRIM.
• RESURFACE EXISTING ASPHALT PARKING SURFACE AND RE-STRIPE.
• INSTALL NEW PLAYGROUND FOR PRE-SCHOOL AND TODDLER AGE

^
3'-0" LANDSCAPING BUFFER ALONG NORTH AND SOUTH PROPER^
LINES: ARBORVITAE @10'-O" O.C. ALONG SOUTH PL. SUPPLEMENT
NORTH & WEST PL WITH ARBORVITAE TO INTEGRATE W/EXISTING
MATURE TREES AND PROVIDE NEW GRQUNDG.OVEF

INTEF
ALTERATION TO CREATE NEW CLASSROOMS & NON-COOKING KITCHEN
UPDATE FINISHES - NEW PAINTING AND REPLACE ALL INTERIOR
FINISHES

1. RESURFACE EXISTING ASPHALT AND RESTRIPE.
2. NEW 6'-0" HIGH WHITE VINYL FENCE TO ENCLOSE PLAYGROUND..
3. NEW MASONRY TRASH ENCLOSURE WITH W/PASSIVE ENTRY.
4. GUIDEPOST STAFF LOCATION FOR PROPOSED PICK UP/DROP OFF.
5. 2 SIDED ENTRY ONLY SIGN TO COMPLY WITH VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

ORDINANCE.
6. 2 SIDED EXIT ONLY SIGN TO COMPLY WITH VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

ORDINANCE.
7. EXISTING MATURE TREES TO REMAIN,
8, EXISTING CURB CUTS TO REMAIN.
9. REUSE EXISTING SIGN LOCATION.

JM&^SI^1^?^^
11.' REMO'VE'E^STING ASPHALT TCTRl\IAROUNDT)Rl7E AND EHEND"

EX!SjaNS£RAjSSs&REj
12.^WW6" CONTINUOUS CONCRETE CURB."
13. PROPOSED SNOW DISPOSAL AREA (CROSSHATCHED).
14. EXTEND EXISTING SIDEWALK FOR NEW DROP OFF AREA AND HC

^^iG^^^^^^^^~^^-^^^^^^
(r15. PLAYGROUND AREA W/GREEN AREA, MULCH AND TRIKE LOOP. *\

\ 16. NEW 5'-0" SIDEWALK IN R.O.W. VERIFY LOCATION OF EXISTING TREE. ^
^»-A»^^^^»^^^^^^^ik^A^^s^^^\^^A^^^^^ ^>^/^r^

,,f'.,^?^^.^' ^y"-" '•'•' '''^

"'.. -:- •''•< ^ •'• •'. \

•••'/.<

/'.
/ .•y.y''-^'.-;' f/ ,''

^Sl^/.-i-i/
; r'K \

\":;:rl%^v~;^ /^ i;-;;;^.:;^l<:: J

v^^&'/^r^^"/
\ '"^'' -^"s'?

\' - .'•'•{'':

'/ /

/
< " './ -"^"' . ' ^^- t

'•//^..', . .^^••y''"/^^^y^

GUIDEPOST
10NTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A1
PROPOSED SITE PLA



PROPOSED FENCE @ 7512 S COUNTS LINE

KEYED NOTES;
\'- ^/v" ^/y ^^v

ENLARGED REAR YARD

SYMBOL

1 • NEW I™E To MATCH AND AUGN WITH PROPOSED @ 7512 S,
COUNWUNERD.

2. NEW CONTINUOUS 6" CONCRETE CURB TO TIE INTO NEW 6"
CONTINUOUS CURB ALONG NORTH AND SOUTH PROPERW LINES.

3. EXISTING MATURE TREES TO REMAIN. NEWARBORVITAE AND
GROUNDCOVER TO SUPPLEMENT EXISTING.

^"n '•"•!;• \:'i •<;.

-/'v/-1!
^'r /'' / ;'

/ ;'. -

\ -~

{'J I

GUIDEPOST
MONTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A1.1

PROPOSED REAR YARD



KEYED NOTES: INDICATED BY<f } SYMBOL

1. NEW 6'-0" HIGH WHITE VINYL FENCE TO ENCLOSE PLAYGROUND.

2. EKTEND EXISTING SIDEWALK FOR NEW DROP OFF AREA AND HC
ACCESS.

3. PLAYGROUND AREA W/GREEN AREA, MULCH AND TRIKE LOOP.

^!^S-S^^\/*Y '^:^'Sgy^-. ^

^S$^^^T^i^
r^3W7/^n..^m'^s^/y /'"/'•/ L
i •:-^K.-y. ^ ^v^
I ' '^..^••f .^'-..^".^ ,<-:;;^.;'^1^

\ ;f^^".'yf ^•'•M^;^.^J
\ ^ ^:^^&^' - :y;-(/ i':: !^/y^

v^®fi/Bi|l/
'\.ivy':^''^§^y
"l^?^-:^?x

GUIDEPOST
10NTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A1.2

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND



EXERCISE ROOM
AGEGROLJP;3-6YRaLD

AREA:1079 SF
OCCUPANCY: 22 @ 50 SF/PERSON

BASEMENT
FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: ^ " == 1 ' - 0"

GUIDEPOST
10NTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, It- 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2 020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A2
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN



< \ Hl.^A-^.^^^n \\\\\ \ \ '

CLASSROOM
AGE GROUP: YOUNG TODDLERS

AREA:650 SF
OCCUPANCY: 19 | ENROU-MENT: U

AGE: 1B-3G MONTHS

CLASSROOM
AGE GROUP: CHILDREN'S HOUSE

AREA:886 SF
OCCUPANCY: '14 | ENROLLMENT: £4

AGE:3-6Y£ARS

rio6~i
CLASSROOM

AGE GROUP: CHILDREN'S HOUSE
AREA: 91 OSF

OCCUPANCY: 45 | ENROLLMENT: 24

I 105 j
CLASSROOM

AGE GROUP: CHILOREN'S HOUSE
AREA:920 EF

OCCUPANCY: 46 | ENROLLMENT: 24

103

CLASSROOM
AGE GROUP: TODDLERS

AREA:679 SF
OCCUPANCY: 20 | ENROU-ME^fT: 14

I 104 |
CLASSROOM

AGE GROUP: CHILDREN'S HOUSE
AREA:931SF

OCCUPANCY: 16 | ENROLLMENT: 21 109
PANTRY/LAUNDRY

^\\\\\\\v .\\\\\\\\\\\\NI

£?"XS^ii

FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: ^ " = 1 ' - 0"

GUIDEPOST
10NTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A3
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN



KEYED NOTES: INDICATED BY < } SYMBOL

1. BRICK & MASONRY DETAILING TO MATCH DCISTING
2. ARCHITECTURAL ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF
3. WINDOWS TO MATCH EXISTING
4. DOORS TO MATCH EXISTING

//' /^

^ _^.

^

EAST ELEVATIO
SCALE: s_

32

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 3_

32
0 "

^

GUIDEPOST
10NTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2 020

HWAIYANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwai@hwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A4
PROPOSED ELEVATIO



KEYED NOTES: INDICATED BY SYMBOL

1. BRICK & MASONRY DETAILING TO MATCH EXISTING
2. ARCHITECTURAL ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF
3. WINDOWS TO MATCH EXISTING
4. DOORS TO MATCH EXISTING

WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: ^" 0 "

GUIDEPOST
MONTESSORI

BURR RIDGE
7508 S. COUNTY LINE RD
BURR RIDGE, IL 60527

SPECIAL USE
APPROVAL APPLICATION

' t

::

I

ORTH ELEVATION
SCALE _3.

32

DATE: 09/24/2020
REV: 12/13/2 020

HWA I YANG
ARCHITECTS
2711 COVINGTON PLACE ESTATES
ST. LOUIS I MISSOURI I 63131
hwaifihwaiyangarchitects.com

SHEET A5
PROPOSED ELEVATIO



From: George Macha <macdriven3@aol.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 1:14 PM 
To: David Preissig <dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov> 
Subject: Re:  

January 5, 2021 

David Preissig, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/ Village Engineer 
Village of Burr Ridge  
451 Commerce Drive  
Burr Ridge , IL 60527  

Dear David Preissig , 

Please accept this letter of resignation of my position as  
GU1, with my last day being ,  
January 5, 2021.  
I thank you for your time and have learned so much at the Public Works 
of Burr Ridge . 

Sincerely,  
George M. Macha 
GU1 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Jan 4, 2021, at 6:01 PM, David Preissig <dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov> wrote: 

8C

mailto:macdriven3@aol.com
mailto:dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov
mailto:dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov


From: Andy Timmons <atimmons1127@gmail.com> 
Date: 12/23/20 3:51 PM (GMT-06:00)  
To: David Preissig <dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov>  
Cc: Steve Karpowicz <skarpowicz@local150.org>  
Subject: Letter of resignation  

Dear Dave, 
 Due to personal reasons I, Andre Timmons. Will be resigning my employment with 

The Village of Burr Ridge. Effective as of today December 23, 2020. It has been a pleasure 
working here for the past 4 years. 

 Sincerely, 
 Andre Timmons 

 12/23/2020 

8E

mailto:atimmons1127@gmail.com
mailto:dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov
mailto:skarpowicz@local150.org


F\
ridih.
.x,3, BURR RIDGE POLICE DEPARTMENT 20.23

PERSONNEL ORDER Issue Dale

December 16, 2020

Suhjcct

RESIGNATION NOTICE -OFFICER PATRICK PATLA Madden
CAl.tiA Ref: Total Pages

I

PURPOSE:

This Personnel Order announces the oflcial notice ofresignation of Officer Patrick Patla.

POLICY:

In accordance with Depa(ment and Village policy, Officer Patrick Patla officially tendered his
notice of intent to resign from the Bun Ridge Police Department effective December 26,2020.
The notice ofintent to resign was received by the ChiefofPolice on December 15,2020.

Officer Patla's colleagues join the Chief of Police in recognition and appreciation of his service
and wish him success and happiness in his future endeavors.

A copy of Officer Patla's notice of resignation is published along with the Personnel Order in
PowerDMS to the attention of all personnel

PROCEDURE:

The vacated position of Patrol Olficer will be filled, as authorized by the Bun Ridge Village
Board, from the standing eligibility list issued by the Burr Ridge Board of Fire and Police
Commissioners.

By Orde

. Madden, Chief of Police

8G



Patrick Patla

21W334 Temple Dr.

Itasca, lL 60143

December 15,2020

Chief Madden

Burr Ridge Police Department

7700 County Line Rd

Burr Ridge, lL 60527

Dear Chief Madden,

Please consider this my official letter of resignation, effective on December 26, 2020 at 1800 hours.

As you are aware from our conversation of December L3,2020,1 have accepted a job offer with the
Lemont Police Department. This decision comes with a heavy heart. For the short time I have been

employed with Burr Ridge Police, I have made many friends and enjoyed the camaraderie I have

experienced with your Department. The Burr Ridge Police Department is one ofthe most professional,

and well-run police departments I have ever experienced in my career. My decision to move on is strictly
family based and how it will benefit them.

Thank you for giving me the chance to continue my career. I will always consider myself in your debt.

lwish the Department and all its employees much success.

Sincerely,

Patrick Patla

Patrolma n

Pil l"fr



1/11/2021

1/12/2021

FUND FUND NAME PRE-PAID PAYABLE TOTAL

AMOUNT

10 General Fund 5,370.00$      138,666.67$      144,036.67$       

23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 350.00           1,282.82            1,632.82             

51 Water Fund 38,625.16          38,625.16

52 Sewer Fund 32,596.99          32,596.99

61 Information Technology 30,587.97          30,587.97

71 Police Pension Fund 73.75             - 73.75
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 5,793.75$      241,759.61$      247,553.36$       

TOTAL

PAYROLL

Board 2,400.00$           

Administration 19,438.46           

Finance 7,973.10             

Police 107,711.88         

Public Works 19,663.20           

Water 24,702.15           

Sewer 5,442.49             
TOTAL 187,331.28$       

GRAND TOTAL 434,884.64$       

PAYROLL

PAY PERIOD ENDING December 12, 2020

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE APPROVAL REPORT

          BOARD DATE:  

PAYMENT DATE:

FISCAL 20-21

8I



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 1/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

3,000.00 29150976 Dec2012/17/20United States Postal ServicePostage10-0000-16-1600

3,000.00 Total For Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

Dept 1010 Boards & Commissions
1,250.00 01/01/2101/01/21Illinois Municipal LeagueDues & Subscriptions10-1010-40-4040

23,915.50 12/17/20 12/17/20Storino, Ramello, & DurkinLegal Services Nov2010-1010-50-5010
5,370.00 1334311/22/20Clark Baird Smith LLPLegal Services Nov2010-1010-50-5010
1,491.00 12/17/20 12/17/20Storino, Ramello, & DurkinProsecution Services Nov2010-1010-50-5015

10,037.50 212512/16/20Isaac Ray Forensic Group, LLCOther Professional Services10-1010-50-5020
240.00 259000 Nov2011/20/20PostmasterPostage10-1010-50-5025
32.25 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone B & C10-1010-50-5030

7,497.88 112/08/20S.B. Friedman & CompanyBusiness District Study10-1010-80-8035

49,834.13 Total For Dept 1010 Boards & Commissions

Dept 2010 Administration
32.00 9663612/01/20Elevator Inspection ServicesElevator Inspection10-2010-50-5020

100.00 9650111/24/20Elevator Inspection ServicesElevator Inspection10-2010-50-5020
532.05 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone Admin10-2010-50-5030

2,675.00 5512312/02/20B&F Construction Code Services IncPlan Review Permit 20-31610-2010-50-5075
895.50 5512412/03/20B&F Construction Code Services IncPlan Review Permit 20-31710-2010-50-5075

3,930.93 5517612/07/20B&F Construction Code Services IncPlan Review Permit 20-32110-2010-50-5075
253.10 3108412/28/20Grasso Graphics, Inc.Operating Supplies10-2010-60-6010

8,418.58 Total For Dept 2010 Administration

Dept 4010 Finance
735.00 364775612/24/20GovTemps USA, LLCConsulting Services10-4010-50-5020
955.50 364341212/17/20GovTemps USA, LLCConsulting Services10-4010-50-5020
245.00 365163012/31/20GovTemps USA, LLCConsulting Services10-4010-50-5020

1,666.00 363883612/10/20GovTemps USA, LLCConsulting Services10-4010-50-5020
161.23 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone Finance10-4010-50-5030

3,762.73 Total For Dept 4010 Finance

Dept 4020 Central Services
90.15 811672-012/21/20Runco Office SupplyCalendars & Supplies10-4020-60-6000

133.55 15944912/08/20Commercial Coffee Service, Inc.Central Services Operating Supplies 10-4020-60-6010
42.99 811403-012/17/20Runco Office SupplyOffice Supplies10-4020-60-6010

266.69 Total For Dept 4020 Central Services

Dept 5010 Police
550.00 12/14/2012/14/20DuPage County Chiefs of Police Assn2021 Dues Madden/Loftus10-5010-40-4040
886.75 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone Police10-5010-50-5030
80.03 13812612/07/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceMaintenance-Vehicles10-5010-50-5051

158.98 755011/30/20Fuller's Car WashCar Washes Nov10-5010-50-5051
264.10 633907712/07/20Willowbrook FordMaintenance-Vehicles10-5010-50-5051
350.00 112412/08/20Critical Reach, Inc.Other Contractual Services10-5010-50-5095

2,289.86 Total For Dept 5010 Police

Dept 6010 Public Works
15.00 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Stihl Safety Glasses-Deputy-Blue Lens10-6010-40-4032
15.95 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Stihl Black Work Glasses 10-6010-40-4032
79.18 39533212/29/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning10-6010-40-4032
79.18 39517912/22/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning10-6010-40-4032
79.18 39489412/08/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning10-6010-40-4032



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 2/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 6010 Public Works

79.18 39504212/15/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning10-6010-40-4032
25.00 12/30/2012/30/20Hannah WeyantMileage Reimbursement10-6010-40-4042
56.63 35516112/15/20Call OnePW Fax10-6010-50-5030

203.70 35516112/15/20Call OnePW Phone Line10-6010-50-5030
56.63 35516112/15/20Call OnePW Rustic Acres10-6010-50-5030
56.62 35516112/15/20Call OneOutside Emergency10-6010-50-5030

268.71 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone PW10-6010-50-5030
39.65 17316512/18/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Maintenance Equipment10-6010-50-5050
21.75 17316412/18/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Maintenance Equipment10-6010-50-5050
40.00 301601112/23/20Courtney's Safety Lane, Inc.Maintenance Vehicles10-6010-50-5051
7.00 754711/30/20Fuller's Car WashCar Washes PW10-6010-50-5051

1,081.94 633962512/15/20Willowbrook FordUnit 31 Maintenance10-6010-50-5051
4,709.50 PS35088211/30/20Lakeshore Recycling Systems LLCStreet Sweeping Cycle10-6010-50-5053
4,456.00 PS35104512/15/20Lakeshore Recycling Systems LLCStreet Sweeping Cycle10-6010-50-5053

350.00 10218410/31/20Premier Landscape Contractors, Inc.Maintenance Streets10-6010-50-5053
4,603.00 2275312/16/20Rag's Electric, Inc.Maintenance Street Lighting10-6010-50-5054

38.81 3699071070 Dec2012/04/20COMEDMaintenance-Signals10-6010-50-5055
175.00 69476112/31/20Meade Electric Company, Inc.Maintenance - Traffic Signals10-6010-50-5055
152.03 69505912/18/20Meade Electric Company, Inc.Maintenance-Signals10-6010-50-5055

4.50 39533212/29/20Breens Inc.Shop Towel Rentals10-6010-50-5085
4.50 39517912/22/20Breens Inc.Shop Towel Rentals10-6010-50-5085
4.50 39489412/08/20Breens Inc.Shop Towel Rentals10-6010-50-5085
4.50 39504212/15/20Breens Inc.Shop Towel Rentals10-6010-50-5085

60.58 910760912712/01/20Airgas USA, LLCOperating Supplies10-6010-60-6010
30.02 910797887912/11/20Airgas USA, LLCOperating Supplies10-6010-60-6010

209.67 97457512/28/20Home Depot Credit ServicesOperating Supplies10-6010-60-6010
8.99 6539812/14/20Menards - HodgkinsGateway Projects10-6010-60-6010

25.92 6554012/16/20Menards - HodgkinsGateway Projects10-6010-60-6010
108.67 6090467912/24/20Praxair Distribution, Inc.Operating Supplies10-6010-60-6010
41.90 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Chainsaw Chain 20" .325 .06310-6010-60-6040
49.90 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Chainsaw Chain 24" 3/8 .05010-6010-60-6040
10.95 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Base (Autocut 25-2)10-6010-60-6040
67.00 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Bar Oil-Winter-1 Gallon10-6010-60-6040
67.00 17285312/10/20Alexander Equipment Company Inc.Bar Oil-Summer- 1 Gallon10-6010-60-6040
15.50 88535B12/11/20Westown Auto Supply Co. Inc.Supplies-Vehicles10-6010-60-6041

15,532.29 71893912/03/20Compass Minerals America, Inc.Bulk Rock Salt10-6010-60-6060
11,850.29 72087512/07/20Compass Minerals America, Inc.Bulk Rock Salt10-6010-60-6060
19,658.09 71734012/01/20Compass Minerals America, Inc.Bulk Rock Salt10-6010-60-6060

64,444.41 Total For Dept 6010 Public Works

Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds
147.69 600807-106112/06/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.Alarm & Fire Monitoring Rustic Acres10-6020-50-5052
424.86 107215-107912/06/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.Quarterly monitoring - alarm and fire PW10-6020-50-5052
891.24 107658-104112/06/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.Semi Annual monitoring - VH10-6020-50-5052
583.00 20377212/15/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyMaintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052
466.40 20374212/02/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyMaintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052

1,081.20 20377312/21/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyMaintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052
3,462.02 SM19006-411/20/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyHVAC maintenance - Village Wide10-6020-50-5052

444.00 2273611/30/20Rag's Electric, Inc.Maintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052
455.16 2273211/30/20Rag's Electric, Inc.Maintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052
26.50 39532812/29/20Breens Inc.Janitorial Services - mats10-6020-50-5058
26.50 39517512/22/20Breens Inc.Janitorial Services - mats10-6020-50-5058



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 3/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds

20.50 39488912/08/20Breens Inc.Janitorial Services - mats10-6020-50-5058
26.50 39503812/15/20Breens Inc.Janitorial Services - mats10-6020-50-5058

1,930.38 923912/28/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Janitorial Services10-6020-50-5058
1,073.00 924012/28/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Janitorial Services Covid-1910-6020-50-5058

19.32 9342034001 Dec2012/04/20COMEDUtilities10-6020-50-5080
19.32 9258507004 Dec20 12/04/20COMEDUtilities10-6020-50-5080

103.20 81110732419 Dec2012/16/20NICOR GasUtilities10-6020-50-5080
618.71 47025700007 Dec2012/16/20NICOR GasUtilities10-6020-50-5080
165.07 ORD5-00466912/28/20AUCA Western First Aid & SafetyOperating Supplies10-6020-60-6010
35.70 6597712/23/20Menards - HodgkinsOperating Supplies10-6020-60-6010

12,020.27 Total For Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds

144,036.67 Total For Fund 10 General Fund

Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
Dept 7030 Special Revenue Hotel/Motel

53.29 2257153023 Dec2012/07/20COMEDGateway Projects23-7030-50-5075
99.67 1319028022 Dec2012/04/20COMEDGateway Projects23-7030-50-5075

160.75 6308711/13/20Menards - HodgkinsGateway Projects23-7030-50-5075
51.12 6471112/04/20Menards - HodgkinsGateway Projects23-7030-50-5075

187.48 6469012/04/20Menards - HodgkinsGateway Projects23-7030-50-5075
730.51 2273912/09/20Rag's Electric, Inc.Holiday Lighting 23-7030-50-5075
350.00 201211VBR10/27/20Sparkles Entertainment, Inc.Santa Appearance23-7030-80-8012

1,632.82 Total For Dept 7030 Special Revenue Hotel/Motel

1,632.82 Total For Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Fund 51 Water Fund
Dept 6030 Water Operations

72.14 39533212/29/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning51-6030-40-4032
72.14 39517912/22/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning51-6030-40-4032
72.14 39489412/08/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning51-6030-40-4032
72.14 39504212/15/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning51-6030-40-4032
12.74 975045988612/17/20Grainger, Inc.Uniform Allowance51-6030-40-4032

134.99 2020121003002212/10/20Red Wing Business Advantage AccountUniform Allowance Partee51-6030-40-4032
150.00 2020121003002212/10/20Red Wing Business Advantage AccountUniform Allowance Mezatis51-6030-40-4032
400.00 I944646212/10/20PDC Laboratories, Inc.Professional Services51-6030-50-5020
740.00 I944582812/16/20PDC Laboratories, Inc.Professional Services51-6030-50-5020
241.84 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone Water51-6030-50-5030
344.61 50347-1312/06/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.Quarterly monitoring - PC51-6030-50-5052

8,690.00 3621112/31/20M.E. Simpson Co. Inc.Maintenance-Distribution System51-6030-50-5067
2,178.42 311675312/14/20Welch Brothers Inc.Maintenance Distribution System51-6030-50-5067

329.09 311691012/16/20Welch Brothers Inc.Maintenance Distribution System51-6030-50-5067
1,178.44 311639612/09/20Welch Brothers Inc.Maintenance-Distribution System51-6030-50-5067
7,202.05 021269712/18/20Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc.Water Systems Operations Study51-6030-50-5070

400.00 7535312/30/20Mackie Consultants, LLCEngineering Services51-6030-50-5070
400.00 7486912/10/20Mackie Consultants, LLCEngineering Services51-6030-50-5070
765.09 0029127044 Dec2012/16/20COMEDUtilities51-6030-50-5080
120.37 9256332027 Dec2012/04/20COMEDUtilities51-6030-50-5080
62.93 9179647001 Dec20 12/08/20COMEDUtilities51-6030-50-5080

190.57 0793668005 Dec2012/07/20COMEDUtilities51-6030-50-5080
311.25 449712911412/04/20COMEDUtilities51-6030-50-5080

4,075.28 31042872012112/09/20Dynegy Energy Services, LLCUtilities51-6030-50-5080



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 4/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 51 Water Fund
Dept 6030 Water Operations

277.40 2564112/14/20Third Millennium Assoc. IncUtility Billing51-6030-50-5095
108.42 974138892112/09/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010
12.74 974670546712/14/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010

117.68 974069708212/08/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010
476.22 973543311312/03/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010
246.36 973628671812/04/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010

2,197.92 973558209112/03/20Grainger, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010
2,818.14 12368312/23/20Ozinga Materials, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010
1,359.25 12339812/18/20Ozinga Materials, Inc.Operating Supplies51-6030-60-6010

851.60 N48472012/15/20Core & Main LPSupplies Equipment51-6030-60-6040
18.00 252401-00012/10/20Ziebell Water Service Products Inc.Supplies Equipment51-6030-60-6040

374.02 3107810 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
242.02 3108351 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
151.27 3108363 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
167.77 3108491 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
35.77 3108511 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070

159.52 3108560 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
365.77 3108540 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
159.52 3108531 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
143.02 3101237 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070
126.52 3101225 Nov2012/01/20Village of HinsdaleWater Purchases51-6030-60-6070

38,625.16 Total For Dept 6030 Water Operations

38,625.16 Total For Fund 51 Water Fund

Fund 52 Sewer Fund
Dept 6040 Sewer Operations

24.63 39533212/29/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning52-6040-40-4032
24.63 39517912/22/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning52-6040-40-4032
24.63 39489412/08/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning52-6040-40-4032
24.63 39504212/15/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning52-6040-40-4032
26.87 35516112/15/20Call OneTelephone Sewer52-6040-50-5030

811.00 02400312/30/20Metropolitan Industries, Inc.Sanitary Lift Station Maintenance52-6040-50-5068
143.13 52604050508012/07/20COMEDUtilities52-6040-50-5080
45.86 0099002061 Dec2012/07/20COMEDUtilities52-6040-50-5080

165.87 0356595009 Dec2012/04/20COMEDUtilities52-6040-50-5080
6,683.50 34971312/23/20RJN Group, Inc.Improvements52-6040-70-7000

24,622.24 2020103609/14/20Unique Plumbing Company, Inc.Improvements52-6040-70-7010

32,596.99 Total For Dept 6040 Sewer Operations

32,596.99 Total For Fund 52 Sewer Fund

Fund 61 Information Technology Fund
Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

16,256.00 557093312/16/20Orbis SolutionsVideo Surveillance Carriage Way61-0000-22-2240
6,727.50 557093412/16/20Orbis SolutionsVideo Surveillance Bridle Path61-0000-22-2240

22,983.50 Total For Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

Dept 4040 Information Technology
240.00 12/20/2012/22/20Electric Brain Media, LLCVideo Post Production Services61-4040-50-5020

2,800.00 557092412/10/20Orbis SolutionsIT Services61-4040-50-5020
950.00 557094612/17/20Orbis SolutionsIT Services61-4040-50-5020

1,950.00 00205712/31/20Cloudpoint GeospatialMonthly GIS Services Dec61-4040-50-5061



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 5/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 61 Information Technology Fund
Dept 4040 Information Technology

40.00 557092412/10/20Orbis SolutionsWireless Mouse Replacement61-4040-60-6010
67.97 557094612/17/20Orbis SolutionsLaptop Bags61-4040-60-6010

556.50 4837505-012/15/20Warehouse Direct, Inc.Operating Supplies - IT61-4040-60-6010
1,000.00 557092412/10/20Orbis SolutionsWireless Networking Carriage Way61-4040-70-7000

7,604.47 Total For Dept 4040 Information Technology

30,587.97 Total For Fund 61 Information Technology Fund

Fund 71 Police Pension Fund
Dept 4050 Police Pension

73.75 1334311/22/20Clark Baird Smith LLPPension Matters Nov2071-4050-80-8099

73.75 Total For Dept 4050 Police Pension

73.75 Total For Fund 71 Police Pension Fund



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 6/6Page:01/06/2021 02:54 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

POST DATES 01/11/2021 - 01/11/2021
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

144,036.67 Fund 10 General Fund
1,632.82 Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

38,625.16 Fund 51 Water Fund
32,596.99 Fund 52 Sewer Fund
30,587.97 Fund 61 Information Technology Fund

73.75 Fund 71 Police Pension Fund

Fund Totals:

247,553.36 Total For All Funds: 


	Agenda
	Summary
	5A 2020-12-14 Minutes
	5B 2020-12-14 Street Policy Minutes
	5C 2020-12-16 Water Committee Minutes
	5D 2020-12-21 Plan Committee Minutes
	6A Z-15-2020 Halleran Special Use 
	6B Z-15-2020 Halleran Variation Parking Spaces
	6C Z-12-2020 Giadla  Special Use
	7A Resolution Appointing Acting Finance Director
	7B Resolution with IDOT Appropriating Motor Fuel Funds
	8A Street Policy Comm - Approve 2021 Road Prog
	8B Z-14-2020 Special Use 7508 County Line
	8C Resignation Letter - George Macha
	8E Resignation Letter - Andy Timmons
	8G Resignation Letter - Patrick Patla
	8I Vendor List



